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Annual Report of Gujarat State Financial Servi Limi
year 2020-21 u/s 2(45) of the Companies Act, 20(;;8. mited for the

Name of Official preparing the Report

W) —
(J.P.Gupta)
Principal Secretary(Finance)
Finance Department
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Review of Performance of Guj

arat St : . )
for the F.Y. 2020-21 fate Financial Services

Limited

Gujarat State Financial Services Limited is inco
under the Companies Act. As per the Memorand
the Company, the main activity of the Co
Government. .

During the year 2020-21., company has continued its financial activities keepin
safety and cautlous..Durlng the year, the total income of the company was ?314%
crore. The main activity of the company during the year has been to manage the
surplus funds of Government of Gujarat Entities. The company has done a credible
act of managing the surplus funds especially providing loans to State Government
entities having sound financial position.

The Liquid Deposit Scheme of the company has continued to get preference from
Public Sector undertakings and other State Government entities. The company has
generated income for State PSUs and other State Government entities on their
funds by accepting those funds for even for less than fifteen days, which otherwise
would have remained idle in their current accounts and investing them in the
money market. The size of funds under this scheme was 2861 crore as on 31*
March, 2021. The company has continued to offer higher rate of interest on funds

received under Inter Corporate Deposits during the year.

During the year, the Company has continued to provide finance to various
Government of Gujarat entities at lower rate than Public Sector Banks. This act has
fective in reducing the interest cost of the Government of

roved ef o
not only p has also provided an indirect benefit to these entities to get

i entities but . ;
Gujarat -+ ve rates from the market thereby reducing their overall cost of

ompetitl
gg?rr;is nall’; CD ull-)ing the year, Company has provided fresh finance of around 36974

crore to the Government of Gujarat entities.
strength and prudent management, has further established

ith its inherent '
P the field of financial services.

its prominent position in
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Statement of Annual Report of Gui

- Gujarat State Financi .
Limited for the F.Y. 2020-21 ¢¢ pe olaced f:ne TFlnanc1al Services
House. able of Assembly

Gujarat State Financial Services Iim; :
1mit
under the Companies Act. ed was incorporated on 20" November, 1992

E?;&’eegr %%%O-Ztlhls the 29t Year.o.f operations of Gujarat State Financial Services
. er the relevant provisions of Acts, the Annual Accounts for the year

ended on 31% March, 2021 were a in i
' , pproved by the member ts 29
General Meeting held on 28" September, 2020.y i e 27 Al

In this connection, it needs to be mentioned that GSFS has prepared its 29™ Annual
Accounts for the year 2020-21 which was verified by Internal Auditor and then
audited by Statutory Auditor vide their Statutory Auditors Report of even date
presented to Accountant General, Gujarat. The comment of the Accountant

General, Gujarat was received which was accorded in Annual General Meeting of
the year 2020-21.

With this, the Audited Annual Report of Gujarat State F inancial Services Limited
for the F.Y. 2020-21 is hereby placed on Table of Assembly House.

Depufyv Socretary
Finance Department,
Government of Gujarat,
Sachivalaya, Gandhinagar
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GUJARAT STATE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CIN : U65910GJ1992SGC018602

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the Twenty-Nineth (29") Annual General Meeting of the Members of the Gujarat
State Financial Services Limited will be held on Tuesday, September 28, 2021 at 4.00 p.m. at the Registered
Office at Wing “B”, 3" Floor, Khanij Bhavan, 132 ft. Ring Road, Near University Ground, Vastrapur, Ahmedabad
— 380 052 to transact the following businesses:

Ordinary Businesses:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year
ended on 31 March, 2021 and the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Independent Auditors
thereon and comments of Comptroller and Auditor General of India, thereon.

2. To declare dividend on Equity Shares for the year ended on 31% March, 2021.

3. To fix-up remuneration of Statutory Auditors and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass with
or without modification (s), the following Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 (5), 142 and other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under, that the Board of Directors be and is
hereby authorized to fix up remuneration of the Chartered Accountant Firm appointed by the Comptroller
and Auditor General of India (CAG), Mukesh Kumar Jain & Co., Chartered Accountants, Ahmadabad as
Statutory Auditors of the Company for the year 2021-22, who shall hold office up to the conclusion of
next Annual General Meeting.”

By order of the Board,
Date : 22.09.2021 Sd/-
Place : Ahmedabad Neeraj Jain

Company Secretary

Registered Office:

Gujarat State Financial Services Limited

CIN: U65910GJ1992SGC018602

Wing “B”, 3% Floor, Khanij Bhavan, 132 ft. Ring Road,
Near University Ground, Vastrapur, Ahmedabad — 380 052

Notes:

1. The explanatory statement setting out the material facts pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act,
2013, relating to special business to be transacted at the Meeting is annexed.

2. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint a Proxy to attend and, on a poll,
to vote instead of himself and the Proxy need not be a Member of the Company.

3. Proxies, in order to be effective, must be received in the enclosed Proxy Form at the Registered Office of
the Company not less than forty-eight hours before the time fixed for the Meeting.

4. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding 50 and holding in the aggregate not more
than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A Member holding more
than ten percent of total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person
as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.

5. A Corporate Member intending to send its authorised representatives to attend the Meeting in terms of
Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 is requested to send to the company a certified copy of the Board
Resolution authorizing such representative to attend and vote on its behalf at the Meeting.
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The documents, if any, referred to in this Notice and the Explanatory Statement are available for inspection
by any member of the Company at the Registered Office of the Company between 10.00 am and 1.00 pm

on any working days (except Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays), upto the date of the ensuing Extra
Ordinary General Meeting.

Attendance slip, proxy form and route map of the venue of the Meeting are annexed hereto.
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BOARDS’ REPORT

The Members,
Gujarat State Financial Services Limited,
Ahmedabad

Your Directors’ have great pleasure in presenting the
29" Annual Report on the business and operations of
the Company together with the Audited Accounts for
the financial year ended 31 March, 2021.

FINANCIAL RESULTS: (Amount in X in Lakhs)
Year ended March 31, 2021 2020
Total Revenue 3,14,642 | 3,59,108
Total Expenses: 2,69,587 | 3,00,094
- Operating Expenditure -

Finance Cost 2,67,004 1 2,98,239

- Other Expenditure including

depreciation 2,583 1,855

Profit / (Loss) before tax 45,055 59,014

Tax Expenses:

Current Tax (10,292) | (13,246)

Deferred Tax 8,045 (2,878)

Total Comprehensive

Income 1,11,675| 49,848

Earnings Per Equity Share

(In Rupees) 31.02 31.08
PERFORMANCE:

During the year, your Company’s total income was I
3,14,642 Lakhs as compared to I 3,59,108 Lakhs
during the previous year. The Company earned a net
profit of ¥ 42,808 Lakhs as compared to< 42,890 Lakhs
during the previous year.

DIVIDEND:

The Board of Directors has recommended a dividend
at a rate of ¥ 2.50 per share on 13,79,96,059 Equity
Shares of ¥ 10 each for the year 2020-21. The total
dividend outgo would be ¥ 34,49,90,148 (rounded off)
for the year 2020-21. The dividend distribution tax
has been abolished and the dividend will be taxable in
the hands of the shareholders.

No amount is proposed to be transferred to General
Reserves of the Company out of the profits for the
current year. As per provisions of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934, your Company has transferred
% 85.62 crore to Reserve Fund under Section 45-1C.

BUSINESS OPERATIONS:

During the year under review, your Company’s main
source of funds was Inter-Corporate Deposits (ICDs)
from Government of Gujarat (GoG) entities, these
funds were at ¥ 40,936.08 crore as on 31% March, 2021
as compared to ¥ 37,336.61 crore as on 31% March,
2020.

The Liquid Deposit Scheme of GSFS, under which
surplus funds are accepted for less than 15 days, has
continued to get lower preference as compared to ICD,
as it is a short term product and preferred for parking
very short term surplus funds. The funds under the
scheme were at < 2860.65 crore as on 31 March, 2021
as compared to < 1938.43 crore as on 31% March, 2020.

CONTRIBUTION TO GOG ENTITIES/
GOVERNMENT:

It is heartening to note that, because of the efficiency
in financial intermediation brought about by GSFS,
the tangible as well as intangible benefits to the
Government entities have been enormous and has been
continued over the years. The financial benefits have
become more visible on account of volatility in interest
rates which have brought to the fore the advantages to
the GoG entities from GSFS operations.

It is also pertinent to note that, with the increase in the
size and corpus of funds under its management, GSFS
has emerged as a credible vehicle for the optimum
utilization of State Government fund. GSFS has
ensured that the GoG entities have enjoyed better rates
on their funds placed and better borrowing rates for
their commercial borrowing and even today are able
to access commercial market at favourable rates.

COVID -19

The devastating second wave of COVID-19 is much
more severe than the first wave like shortages of
vaccines, hospital beds, oxygen cylinders and other
necessary medicine in various State of the country
including Gujarat. Various Central Ministries/
Departments have dedicated COVID hospitals and
COVID beds since the beginning of this pandemic and
have also committed to continue doing so.

While, the Government of Gujarat has initiated
proactive and aggressive steps to curb the far spreading
impact of the pandemic, it shall be very challenging
job for Government to overcome such pandemic. The
state-wide resources and services have been deployed
to ensure that suffering patients are provided utmost
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care while mechanism has been activated to quarantine
potential citizens. Further, various actions related to
bringing awareness towards COVID-19, measures for
preventive health care and sanitation and disaster
management are also being undertaken.

Your Company abided by the advisories issued by the
Central Government, State Governments and various
statutory and regulatory authorities, from time to time.
In enforcing social distancing and keeping the safety
of employees in mind, the office was operating in
accordance with the guidelines/directions issued by
various statutory, regulatory and local authorities. Your
Company has proactively leveraged technology,
enabling the employees to work from home.

LOAN MORATORIUM

None of your Company’s borrowers has sought for
moratorium of the loan amount. All the loans to GoG
entities are regularly repaid and are standard in nature
with zero NPA as on March 31, 2021.

APPLICABILITY OF PRUDENTIAL NORMS OF
RESERVE BANK OF INDIA

NBFC (Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking
Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2016 (the Master Directions) by
Reserve Bank of India were partially exempted from
its applicability to the Government Companies.
However, vide Master Directions updated on May 31,
2018, the exemption granted to Government
Companies was withdrawn and was made applicable
relating to prudential regulations, corporate
governance, conduct of business regulations and
statutory provisions in time bound manner.

Pursuant to the representations made, the Reserve Bank
of India vide its letter no. DNBR(PD)CO.1223/
03.10.001/2018-19 dated December 18, 2018 granted
exemption from concentration of credit norms to the
extent of exposure to the Government of Gujarat
entites. Further to the request of the Company, Reserve
Bank of India vide email dated March 03, 2021
expresses its inability to accede to company’s request
for reducing risk weight on loans and mutual fund
investments that could have helped your Company to
maintain prescribed CRAR level. Your Company shall
continue to put its sincere efforts to comply with the
prudential norms keeping in perspective the unique
business model of the Company.

The Government of Gujarat has approved Credit and
Investment Policy of the Company in October, 2020.

CAPITAL TO RISK WEIGHTED ASSETS RATIO
(CRAR)

Your Company has CRAR at 7.57% as on 31st March,
2021, which was lower than the RBI prescribed level
of 13%. GSFS provides loans to GoG entities only
from the funds received from GoG entities and the
circulation of funds remains within the ambit of
Government of Gujarat. Such circulation of funds may
be treated as sovereign in nature as State Government
by itself, is sovereign in nature. Therefore, GSFS has
requested RBI to reduce the risk weightage of such
loans from 100% to 0%. Moreover, the Company
invests in flagship debt schemes of top Asset
Management Companies, GSFS has also requested
RBI to reduce the risk weightage of investment in
AMCs from 100% to atleast 18%. However, Reserve
Bank of India vide email dated March 03, 2021
expresses its inability to accede to company’s request
for reducing risk weight on loans and mutual fund
investments that could have helped your Company to
maintain prescribed CRAR level. Your Company will
continue to put its sincere efforts towards attaining
the prescribed level of CRAR keeping in perspective
the unique business model of the Company.

In addition to above, your Company has been paying
dividend at a moderate rate, and also steadily increasing
its portfolio of investment in Gujarat State
Development Loans (GSDLs), which enable
improvement in CRAR.

DIRECTORS:

Shri Yamal Vyas (DIN: 01308440), completed second
consecutive term as an Indepdnent Director on March
22, 2020 and as per provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, he was not eligible for reappointment. The Board
noted the cessation at its meeting held on June 25,
2020.

Shri Sunil H. Talati (DIN: 00621947), was appointed
as an Independent Director pursuant to the approval
letter no. JNV/10/2009/149857/A dated July 15, 2020
received from Finance Department, Government of
Gujarat. The Board of Directors co-opted him on July
15, 2020 through a circular resolution.

Shri Mehul K. Vasava (DIN:08918906), Deputy
Secretary (Pension) was appointed as Director of the
Company in place of Shri Kamlesh K. Patel (DIN:
08687563) vide letter no.JNV/10/2014/557212A dated
October 06, 2020. The Board of Directors co-opted
him on October 14, 2020 through a circular resolution.

The Board places on record its appreciation for the
services rendered by them during their tenure as
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Independent Director/ Nominee Director of the
Company.

None of the Directors shall retire by rotation in view
of exemption granted to the Government Companies
vide Notification dated June 5, 2015 of Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, Government of India and amended
vide notification dated June 13, 2017.

STATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY
INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS UNDER SUB-
SECTION (6) OF SECTION 149:

As at March 31, 2021, Shri Sunil Talati and Shri
Bhadresh Mehta Independent Directors of the
Company have given their declaration to the Board

that they met the criteria of Independence as provided
in Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD AND
AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The Board meets at regular interval with a gap between
two meetings not exceeding 120 days. Additional
meetings are held as and when necessary. During the
year under review, the Board met four times. The
meetings were held on June 25, 2020, September 25,
2020, December 24, 2020 and March 24, 2021.

The details of the attendance by the Directors during
the year 2020-21, of the Board meetings and Audit
Committee meetings are as under:

Name of Directors Attendance at Board meeting Attendance at Audit Committee
25/06/2020|25/09/2020 | 24/12/2020(24/03/2021 | 25/06/2020(25/09/2020 {24/12/2020 {24/03/2021
Shri K. Kailashnathan, IAS Yes Yes Yes Yes NA NA NA NA
Shri Pankaj Joshi, IAS Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Shri Milind Torawane, 1AS Yes Yes Yes Yes NA NA NA NA
Smt. Arti Kanwar, IAS Yes No No Yes NA NA NA NA
Shri Sunil Talati NA Yes Yes Yes NA Yes Yes Yes
Shri Bhadresh Mehta Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Shri Kamlesh K. Patel @ Yes Yes NA NA NA NA NA NA
Shri Mehul K. Vasava ® NA NA Yes Yes NA NA NA NA

(1) Appointed with effect from July 15, 2020 (2) Ceased with effect from October 6, 2020

(3) Appointed with effect from October 14, 2020

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
(CSR):

The Company has constituted a Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) Committee in accordance with
Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)
Rules, 2014 as amended time to time.

The composition of the Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee as during the year was as
under:

Name of Category |Designation

the Director

Shri Pankaj Joshi, IAS | Managing |Chairman
Director

Shri Milind Torawane, | Nominee Member

IAS Director

Shri Bhadresh Mehta | Independent |Member
Director

The Company has also formulated a Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy which is available on the website
of the Company at www.gsfs.co.in. The Annual Report
on CSR activities as required under the Companies

(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014,
as amended, is annexed herewith and marked as
Annexure A to this Report.

During the year 2020-21, MCA issued circular dated
March 23, 2020, on spending of CSR funds for COVID-
19. Your Company had made contribution of ¥ 16.50/-
crore to Chief Minister Relief Fund of Gujarat for the
purpose of COVID-19 activities under item nos. (i) and
(xii) of Schedule VII relating to promotion of health care
including preventive health care and sanitation and
disaster management respectively.

AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The composition of the Audit Committee as during
the year was as under:

Name of Category Designation

the Director

Shri Sunil Talati Independent | Chairman

(w.e.f. July 15, 2020) |Director

Shri Bhadresh Mehta |Independent | Member
Director

Shri Pankaj Joshi, IAS | Managing Member
Director
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There were no instances where the Board has not
accepted the recommendations of the Audit
Committee.

The Company has established the vigil mechanism
through Whistle Blower Policy for all the stakeholders
of the Company which also provides for direct access
to the Nominee Director/ member of the Audit
Committee as per Policy. The said policy can be viewed

on www.gsfs.co.in.

The Whistle Blower Policy will be applicable to all
the stakeholders of the Company, which seeks to
provide a mechanism for the Stakeholders to disclose
their concerns and grievances on Unethical Behavior
and Improper/Illegal Practices and Wrongful Conduct
taking place in the Company for appropriate action.
The Policy provides necessary safeguards to all
Whistle Blowers for making Protected Disclosures in
Good Faith and any Stakeholder assisting the
investigation. It also provides the detailed scope and
role of Whistle Blower and the manner in which
concern can be raised. Further, the Policy contains
provisions relating to investigation of the protected
disclosures, protection to the whistle blower and
reporting & monitoring by the Company.

There is no fraud reported by the Independent Auditors
of the Company under Section 143 (12) of the
Companies Act, 2013, during the period under review.

ASSET LIABILITY MANAGEMENT (ALM)
COMMITTEE AND RISK MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD

while certain types of risks are inherent, unforeseen,
systemic and therefore difficult to evaluate and
anticipate in advance for any entity into business of
lending and investment, it also acknowledged that
GSFS, while providing credit, deals with management
of its financial resources within the ambit of state
entities only as per its unique business model. The
Committee noted that credit and investments are done
as per the Credit and Investment Policy of the Company
which is approved by the Government of Gujarat.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

In order to manage the risks, the Board of Directors
has constituted Finance Committee of Board to oversee
the finance functions of the Company. In addtion to
above, your Company has constituted Risk
Management Committee and your Company has also
appointed Shri Vipul Sheth, a Chartered Accountant,
working as Vice President with the Company, as Chief
Risk Officer with effect from July 11, 2021 for a period
of two years as per the guidelines of RBI. Your
Company assesses the risk keeping in view the unique
business nature of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In terms of Section 134 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013,
in relation to the financial statements for Financial Year
2020-21, the Board of Directors states that:

a) In preparation of the annual accounts, the
applicable accounting standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating

to material departures, if any;

During the year under review, the Asset Liability = b) The directors have selected such accounting
Management (ALM) Committee and Risk policies and applied them consistently and made
Management Committee of Board of Directors met one judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
time and reviewed the details of deployment of funds prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
in various asset classes of different tenors, pricing of state of affairs of the Company as on 31st March,
deposits, interest rate on loans, mix of maturity profile 2021 and of the profits for the year ended 31st
of assets and liabilities etc. and found that the Company March, 2021;
is presently in comfortable liquidity position with ¢) The directors have taken proper and sufficient
respect to the existing RBI liquidity risk management care for maintenance of adequate accounting
framework and operates within the parameters set by records in accordance with the provisions of the
the Board. Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets
During the year under review, the Risk Management of the Company and for preventing and detecting
Committee of Board of Directors also met one time fraud and other irregularities; and
and reviewed present position of the outstanding loans d) The financial statements have been prepared on
to GoG entities, investments in Liquid / Debt Schemes a going concern basis.
of approved Mutual Funds and investment in other . . ) )
avenues by GSFS. The Committee reviewed the risk e) The Directors had laid down internal financial
parameters associated with funds deployed, risk contrgls to be follovyed by the company and that
monitoring mechanism and credit ratings of the such 1nterna} ﬁnanmal. controls are adequate and
invested portfolio. The Committee acknowledged that were operating effectively.
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f)  The Directors have devised proper systems to
ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws, by way of a periodic report from
management of the Company and reviewing the
same in their meeting as a regular agenda and
that such systems are adequate and operating
effectively.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH
REFERENCE TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Your Company has adequate internal financial control
procedures commensurate with its size and nature of
business. These controls include well defined Standard
Operating Procedures, Policies, Guidelines,
Authorisation and Approval Process. The internal
financial controls of the Company are adequate to
ensure the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, timely preparation of reliable
financial information, prevention of errors,
safeguarding of assets and orderly and efficient conduct
of its business.

AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT
Statutory Auditor:

The Comptroller and Auditor General of India had
appointed M/s. Mukeshkumar Jain & Co, Chartered
Accountants, Ahmedabad as Statutory Auditors of the
Company for the financial year 2020-21 and the
Auditors’ Report is enclosed.

Secretarial Auditor:

Pursuant to the provisions of Companies Act, 2013,
Shri Ashwin Shah, Practicing Company Secretary,
Ahmedabad (CP No.1640) was appointed as
Secretarial Auditor of the Company from the year
2016-17. The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial
year ended March 31, 2021 is annexed herewith and
marked as Annexure B to this Report.

EXPLANATION OR COMMENTS BY THE
BOARD ON EVERY QUALIFICATION,
RESERVATION OR ADVERSE REMARK OR
DISCLAIMER MADE BY THE STATUTORY
AUDITOR IN HIS REPORT AND BY THE
COMPANY SECRETARY IN PRACTICE IN HIS
SECRETARIALAUDIT REPORT:

Statutory:

The Auditor’s Report does not contain any
Qualification, Reservation or Adverse Remarks or
Disclaimer

Secretarial:

During the financial year 2020-21, one of the

Independent Directors completed his second term on
March 22, 2020. Since, GSFS is Government of
Gujarat (GoG) Company, it was necessary to seek an
opinion of the GoG for appointment of Independent
Director. In view of the same, the Company had
proposed for opinion of the GoG. The Government
had approved appointment of Independent Director
vide its letter dated July 15, 2020 and accordingly, the
Company had appointed Shri Sunil Talati as an
Independent Director w.e.f. July 15, 2020. Hence, your
Company could not constitute Audit Committee and
Nomination & Remuneration Committee as per the
requirements of the Section 177 and 178 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, for
that period only.

COMMENTS MADE BY COMPTROLLER AND
AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA ON
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE
COMPANY:

The Comptroller and Auditor General of India has
given NIL comment on financial statements of the
Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2021.
The NIL comment Report for the financial year ended
March 31, 2021 is annexed herewith and marked as
Annexure C to this Report.

THE ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to the Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act,
2013 and Rule 12 (1) of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Annual Return
of the Company as on March 31, 2021 is available on
the Company’s website and can be accessed at

www. gsfs.co.in.
PUBLIC DEPOSITS:

Your Company has not accepted any deposits from the
public. There is no deposit which remained unpaid or
unclaimed as at the end of the year. Since, your
Company has not accepted any public deposit, there
is no question of default in repayment of deposits or
payment of interest thereon. There were no public
deposits which were not in compliance with the
requirement of Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013
and rules made thereunder.

Your Company do not have any unclaimed dividend.
There was no amount due for transfer to Investor
Education and Protection fund (IEPF) during the year.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR
ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

In accordance with the provisions of section 188 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under,
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the transactions entered into with related parties are
in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s
length pricing basis, the details of which are included
in the notes forming part of the financial statements.
There are no material related party transactions entered
during the year, which falls into the purview of Section
188. The financial transactions are not covered under
the aforesaid Section, accordingly, information in form
AOQOC - 2 is not annexed.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR
INVESTMENTS MADE:

Since, your Company is Non-Banking Finance
Company, the disclosure regarding particulars of loans
given, guarantees given and security provided is
exempt under the provisions of Section 186 (11) of
the Companies Act, 2013. Further, your Company
being a Government Company, is exempted from the
applicability of the Section 186 in view of the
exemptions granted vide notification of Ministry of
Corporate Affairs on June, 5, 2015.

As regards investments made by the Company, the
details of the same are provided under Note to
Accounts forming part of the annual accounts of the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2021.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL
HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND
REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

In accordance with the requirements of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 (“POSH Act”) and
Rules made thereunder, The Company has in place a
robust mechanism for prevention and redressal of
complaints of sexual harassment. There were no
complaints reported during the year.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

In view of the nature of activities which are being
carried-out by the Company, Section 134 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, concerning conservation of
energy and technology absorption, respectively, are not
applicable to the Company. During the year, the
Company has not expended any amount in foreign
currency. The Company has also not earned any foreign
exchange during the year under review.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND
ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

Your Company does not have any subsidiary, joint
Ventures and Associate Company.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

During the year under review, Shri Anil Maloo has
resigned from the post of Company Secretary and
Whole-time Key Managerial Person with effect from
October 06, 2020 and Shri Neeraj Jain has been
appointed as Company Secretary and Whole-time Key
Managerial Person with effect from October 7, 2020.

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT:

The Company regards its human resources as amongst
its most valuable assets and is in the process of
reviewing the policies and processes to create a work
environment that encourages initiative, provides
challenges and opportunities and recognizes the
The
company is also in the process of investing in people
competencies for the business requirements of

performance and potentials of its employees.

tomorrow.
REMUNERATION POLICY OF EMPLOYEES:

Your Company has adopted the salary scale of
Government of Gujarat (as in force from time to time)
as per the respective grades of the employees. As at
March 31, 2021, your Company has pay scale as
recommended by Seventh Pay Commission and as
adopted by the Government of Gujarat for the
employees of concerned GoG entities.

The names and other details as required under Rule 5
(2) and (3) of Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014
of top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn,
are annexed to the Board’s Report. However, the
Board’s Report is being sent to the shareholders
excluding the annexure. In terms of Section 136 of the
Companies Act, 2013, the annexure is available for
inspection by the members at the registered office
during the business hours on working days upto the
date of ensuing Annual General Meeting. Any
shareholder interested in obtaining a copy of the said
annexure may write to the Company. There was no
employee who was in receipt of remuneration in excess
of the limits set out under Rule 5 (2) of the aforesaid
Rules.
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REQUIREMENT FOR MAINTENANCE OF
COST RECORDS:

Since the Company is Non-banking finance Company,
it is not required to maintain cost records as specified
by the Central Government under section 148(1) of
the Companies Act, 2013.

DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES:

Your Company has secured International Security
Identification Number (ISIN: INE02MGO01017) from
Central Depository Services (India) Limited and has
facilitated the dematerialsation of the shares through
its Registrar and Transfer Agent.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND LITIGATIONS:

There is no material change and commitment, affecting
the financial position of the Company which has
occurred between the end of the financial year to which
the financial statements relate and the date of the
report. There has been no change in the nature of
business of the Company. No significant or material
orders have been passed by the regulators / courts or
tribunals impacting the going concern status of the
Company and / or the Company’s operations in future.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

Your Company has followed the applicable Secretarial
Standards, i.e. SS-1 and SS-2, relating to ‘Meetings of
the Board of Directors’ and ‘General Meetings’
respectively.

PROSPECTS:

GSFS consolidated its position further in the financial
services sector because of its inherent strengths and
prudent management. Your Company will continue to
act as the agency for efficiently managing the surplus
funds of GoG entities.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

Your Directors are pleased to place on record their
sincere appreciation of the continued patronage
received from the Government of Gujarat and support
from GoG controlled entities, depositors, customers,
shareholders, Reserve Bank of India, Company’s
bankers and other associates whose continued support
have gone a long way in ensuring a creditable
performance of the Company. Your Directors convey
their sincere gratitude to all for the trust reposed in
the Company. Your Directors also wish to place on
record their appreciation of the contribution made by
the employees at all levels for the growth of your
Company.

For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/-

K. Kailashnathan, 1AS
Chairman

(DIN: 00587901)

Place : Gandhinagar
Date : 22.09.2021
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BOARD’S REPORT - ANNEXURE - A

The Annual Report on CSR activities

I. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:
Introduction

Your Company formulated CSR Policy pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act,
2013 and rules made there under and the Board of Directors at its meeting held on August 21, 2015 based
on the recommendation of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Board, approved the same.
Further, as per amended rules, the Company has revised CSR policy accordingly in their board meeting
held on September 22, 2021.

Thrust Areas

Your Company gives due importance to welfare activities in the social sectors covered under Human
Development Index (HDI) for the well being of the people of area of its operations. Your Company would
endeavour to enhance value creation in the society in which it operates, through its services, conduct and
initiatives, so as to promote sustained growth for the society and community, in fulfillment of its role as
a social responsible corporate citizen with utmost environment concern.

The CSR Policy provides the thrust areas where the Company proposes to undertake the relevant CSR
activities on priority basis. The thrust areas are in line with Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 and
consist of the following:

(i) Promoting preventive health care and sanitation including community Toilets.

(i1)) Diagnostic healthcare

(iii)) Malnutrition and Entrepreneurship and

(iv) Skilling for Livelihood enhancement projects.

(v) Promoting education / special education among all including differently abled persons (*)

(vi) Rural Development Projects including projects related to irrigation — Construction of Check Dam
and Installation of Lift Irrigation. (**)

* (inserted as per approval of Board at 119" Board meeting held on November 30, 2017
** (inserted as per approval of Board at 125™ Board meeting held on March 16, 2019.
Identification, Approval and Implementation

The Policy provides for identification of the CSR Projects, in-particular in thrust areas, and approval by
the CSR Committee, with estimated expenditure and implementation schedules. Total expenditure in the
CSR Annual Plan is approved by the Board upon recommendation by the CSR Committee.

Your Company may directly contribute to any project (s) or identified by Gujarat CSR Authority or to
other implementing agency / agencies for the purpose of the same, within the broad categories of thrust
areas.

The CSR Policy further lists the monitoring and reporting mechanism, duties and responsibilities of the
Board, the CSR Committee; details about allocation of funds for CSR activities; and the review periodicity/
amendment of the CSR Policy and CSR Plan.
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2.

Composition of CSR Committee:

SL Name of Director Designation/Nature of Number of meetings | Number of meetings
No. Directorship of CSR Committee | of CSR Committee
held during the attended during the
year* year*
1. | Shri Pankaj Joshi, IAS Chairman (Managing Director) 0 0
2. | Shri Milind Torawane, IAS | Member (Nominee Director) 0 0
3 Shri Bhadresh Mehta Member (Independent Director) 0 0
*Due to pandemic situation and paucity of time, the CSR Committee had recommended the CSR
contribution by passing circular resolution on April 1, 2020.
3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by
the board are disclosed on the website of the company; www.gsfs.co.in
4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule
8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report);
Not Applicable to the Company for the financial year under review.
5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate
Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any
SI. | Financial Year Amount available for set-off from Amount required to be set off for
No. preceding financial years (in %) the financial year, if any (in %)
Nil
6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): 3288,26,47,391.81
7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5); 35,76,52,948.00
(b)  Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the
previous financial years. Nil
(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c). 35,76,52,948.00
8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:
Total Amount Spent Amount Unspent (in %)

for theFinancial
Year. (in %)

Total Amount transferred to Amount transferred to any fund specified
Unspent CSR Account as per | underSchedule VII as per second proviso to

Section 135(6). section 135(5).

Amount Date of Name of Fund | Amount Date of

(in %) transfer (in %) transfer
%16,50,00,000.00 Nil
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(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:

1. 2. 3. 4. 5. 6. 7. 8. 9. 10. 11.
SL Name Item Local | Location of the | Project | Amount | Amount | Amount | Mode of Mode of
No. of the from area project Duration | Allocated | spent in | transferr | Impleme | Implementation
Project the (Yes/ for the the ed to nta -Through
list of No) project | current | Unspent | tion - Implementing
activiti (in%) financial CSR Direct Agency
es Year Account | (Yes/No)
in (in%) for the
Schedu project
le VII as per
to the Section
Act. 135(6)
(in%)
State |District Name | CSR
Registra
tion
number
Nil

(c¢) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

1. 2. 3. 4. 5. 6. 7. 8.
SL Name of Item from Local | Location of the Amount Mode of Mode of
No. the the list of area project. spent for implementat implementation -
Project activitiesin | (Yes/ the ion Through implementing
schedule No). project Direct Agency.
VII to the (in) (Yes/No).
Act.

State District Name CSR
registration
number

1. Chief Minister | promotion of | Yes Gujarat - %16,50,00,000.00 No Chief -
Relief  Fund, | health care, Minister
Gujarat including Relief Fund
preventive
health care and
sanitation, and
disaster
management

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads; Nil
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable
(f)  Total amount spent for the Financial Year: ¥ 16,50,00,00,000.00

(8b+8c+8d+8e)
(g) Excess amount for set off, if any: ¥ 10,73,47,052.00

SL Particular Amount (in )
1. Two percent of average net profit of the company as persection 135(5) 5,76,52,948.00
11. Total amount spent for the Financial Year 16,50,00,000.00
iil. Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 10,73,47,052.00
iv. Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes oractivities of the

previous financial years, if any -
V. Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years[(iii)-(iv)] 10,73,47,052.00
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9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:
SL Preceding Amount Amount spent Amount transferred to any fund specified Amount
No. Financial transferred to in the under Schedule VII as per section 135(6), if remaining
Year. Unspent CSR reporting any. to
Account under Financial Year be spent in
section 135 (6) (in ) succeeding
(in %) financial
years. (in J)
Name of the Amount Date of
Fund (in %) transfer.
Nil
(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial
year(s):
1 2) 3 4) 5) 6) 7 ) 9
SL Project Name of Financial Project Total Amount Cumulative | Status of
No. ID. the Year in duration. amount | spent on the amount the
Project. which the allocated project in spent project -
project was for the the at the end | Completed
commenced. project reporting of /Ongoing.
(in) Financial reporting
Year (in ) Financial
Year (in %)
Nil
10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or
acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise details).
(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s). Not Applicable
(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset. Not Applicable
(¢) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is
registered, their address etc. Not Applicable
(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location
of the capital asset). Not Applicable
I1.  Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per
section 135(5). Not Applicable
Sd/- Sd/-
Shri Milind Torawane, IAS Shri Pankaj Joshi, IAS
Place : Gandhinagar Director Chairman CSR Committee
Date : 22.09.2021 (DIN:03632394) (DIN:01532892)
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BOARD’S REPORT - ANNEXURE - B

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FORM NO. MR-3
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31* March 2021
Pursuant to section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

To,
The Members,
GUJARAT STATE FINANCIAL SERVICES LTD.

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence
to good corporate practices by Gujarat State Financial Services Ltd. (hereinafter called the company). Secretarial
Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/
statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has,
during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31% March, 2021 complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism
in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company for the financial year ended on 31% March 2021 according to the provisions of:

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
ii.  The law as applicable specifically to the Company is as under:
a. Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
1. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

The company was not required to comply with the provision of other regulation listed in the Form No. MR-3
prescribed under the companies Rules, 2014 as there were no instance / events falling within the purview of
these regulations during the financial year.

We further report that

During the period under audit, composition of board of Directors of the Company was not in compliance with
section 149 of the Act. Consequently the Company could not comply with the provisions of section 177 and 178
of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda
were sent generally seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information
and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through and recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.

Sd/-
Place : Ahmedabad CS Ashwin Shah
Date : 22" September, 2021 Company Secretary
UDIN: F001640C000990122 C. P. No. 1640

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as “ANNEXURE I”” and forms an
integral part of this report.

Gujarat State Financial Services Limited 93 29th Annual Report




ANNEXURE “I” TO SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

To,
The Members,
GUJARAT STATE FINANCIAL SERVICES LTD.

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to
ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices,
we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of
the company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws,
rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is
the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test
basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the

efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

Sd/-
Place : Ahmedabad CS Ashwin Shah
Date : 22" September, 2021 Company Secretary
UDIN : F001640C000990122 C. P. No. 1640
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Annexure C
CAG’S REPORT
COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION

143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF GUJARAT STATE
FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

The preparation of financial statements of Gujarat State Financial Services Limited for the year ended 31
March 2021 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013
(Act) is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. The Statutory Auditors appointed by the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 139(5) of the Act are responsible for expressing opinion
on the financial statements under Section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in accordance with the
standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them
vide their Audit Report dated 22 June 2021.

I, on the behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a supplementary audit of the
financial statements of Gujarat State Financial Services Limited for the year ended 31 March 2021 under
Section143(6)(a) of the Act. This supplementary audit has been carried out independently without access to the
working papers of the Statutory Auditors and is limited primarily to inquiries of the Statutory Auditors and
Company Personnel and a selective examination of some of the accounting records.

On the basis of my supplementary audit nothing significant has come to my knowledge which would give rise to
any comment upon or supplement to Statutory Auditors’ report under Section 143(6)(b) of the Act.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India

Sd/-
(H. K. Dharamadarshi)
Principal Accountant General (Audit IT), Gujarat

Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 23/08/2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of GUJARAT STATE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Report on the Audit of Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the Ind AS Financial Statements of Gujarat State Financial Services Limited (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021, and the statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information (hereinafter referred to as “the Ind AS Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Ind
AS Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2021, and profit and other comprehensive income,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

Without qualifying our Independent Auditors Report

L.

We draw attention to Note No. 41 of Ind AS Financial Statements which describes that the company has
different base for calculation of interest on deposits and loans in case of leap year. The company had a
policy of taking 365 as base for calculating interest on deposit and for the purpose of loans the company
took 366 as the base. During the year the company has decided to adopt a uniform policy from next leap
year. A comparative table of the basis is mentioned below. Our opinion is not modified in this respect.

(X in Crores)
Particulars As per the Account Interest Calculation Considering different Basis
of Company
01.04.2020 to Base of 366 Base of 365 Difference
31.12.2020 Days Days
Interest paid on Deposit
(ICD & LDS) 2041.93 2036.35 2041.93 5.58
Interest received on Loans 667.89 667.89 666.07 1.82

We draw attention to Note No. 39 of Ind AS Financial Statements which describes that the company has
only single independent director from the period 01.04.2020 to 15.07.2020 instead of having two independent
directors. However, the company has appointed second independent director on 15.07.2020.

We draw attention to Note No. 7 & 28.3 Ind AS of the Financial Statements with respect to valuation of
quoted and unquoted equity shares. Our opinion is not modified in this respect.
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Other Information

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the Ind
AS Financial Statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Ind AS Financial
Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs, profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS Financial Statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS Financial Statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

*  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS Financial Statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3) (i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to
Ind AS Financial Statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
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»  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the Ind AS Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

»  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS Financial Statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Ind AS Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated in with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(1) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

(2) The Comptroller and Auditor General have issued the directions and sub directions indicating the area to
be examined in term of subsection (5) of Section 143 of The Companies Act, 2013. The compliance of
which is set out in “Annexure B”

(3) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the books of account.

d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Company as on March
31, 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure C”.
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g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirement of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

The company being government company provision of section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable to
the company.

h)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Ind
AS Financial Statements - Refer Note 19.1

(i1)) The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards,
for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts, - Refer Note 17 of Change in
Equity to the Ind AS Financial Statements; and the company has made necessary changes in
accounts to comply with RBI Circular RBI/2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC) C.C. PD No. 109/
22.10.106/2019-20 dated 13" March, 2020.

(iii)) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

Place: Ahmedabad For Mukeshkumar Jain & Co.
Date : 22 June 2021 Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 106619W)

Sd/-

CA. Piyush Jain

Partner

(Membership No. 413377)
UDIN: 21413377AAAABP4470
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report to the Members of Gujarat State Financial Services Limited of even date)

(i) Inrespect of the Company’s Property Plant and Equipment:

a. The Company is maintaining register for property plant and equipment, however details in respect
of specific identification of assets is incomplete.

b.  Asexplain to us the company has a program of verification to cover all the items of property plant and
equipment in once in a three year which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain assets were physically verified
by the management during the year. According to the information and explanations given to us, no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

c.  According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us, the company
doesn’t hold any immovable properties in its name and hence, clause related to title deeds of immovable
properties are held in the name of the company is not applicable.

(il)) The Company is a Non-Banking Finance Company. Accordingly it does not have any inventory. Thus,
clause 3(ii) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 is not applicable.

(iii)) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has neither granted any loans,
secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other parties covered in the register maintained under section
189 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under, are not applicable for the year under
audit.

(iv) The Company has not given any loans, investment, guarantees and securities which may be covered under
section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(v) Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted
deposits, and the directives issued by Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any
other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules,
2014 framed there under, are not applicable for the year under audit.

(vi) The company is not engaged in production, processing, manufacturing or mining activities. Therefore, the
provisions of maintenance of cost records specified by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 mentioned under clause 3(vi) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(vii) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

a. The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Services Tax, and other material statutory
dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities and no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
same were in arrears as at March 31, 2021 for a period of more than six months from the date they
become payable.

b. Details of statutory dues which have not been deposited as at March 31, 2021 on account of dispute
are given below:

S. | Name of Statute | Nature of Amount Period to which Forum where the
No. Dues (Rs) the amount dispute is pending
relates (A.Y.)
1 | Income Tax Act | Income Tax 7,198,522 2003-04 | Gujarat High Court,
ITAT set aside
2 | Income Tax Act | Income Tax 66,518,271 2005-06 | Gujarat High Court
3 | Income Tax Act | Income Tax - 2007-08 | Assessing Officer -
Set Aside Assessment
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4 | Income Tax Income Tax - 2011-12 | Gujarat High Court
5 | Income Tax Income Tax - 2010-11 | Gujarat High Court
2009-10 | Gujarat High Court
6 | Income Tax Income Tax - 2006-07 | Gujarat High Court
7 | Income Tax Income Tax - 2004-05 | High Court
8 | Income Tax Income Tax - 2002-03 | High Court
Total 73,716,793

(viii)In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no such dues to
financial institutions or bank to the company. The Company did not have any outstanding debenture during
the year. Hence reporting under clause 3 (viii) of the order is not applicable to the company.

(ix) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) or term loans and hence reporting under clause 3 (ix) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(x) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by
the Company or no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported
during the year.

(xi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and based on our examination
of the records of the company, no managerial remuneration is paid/provided hence this clause is not applicable
to the company.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
Company and hence reporting under clause 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii)In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is in compliance
with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable, for all transactions with the
related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the notes to Ind AS
Financial Statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standard (AS) 24, Related Party
Disclosure.

(xiv) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the Company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or persons connected to its directors and
accordingly, clause (xv) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(xvi) The Company is a Non — Banking Financial Company and necessary registration under section 45-IA of
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 has been obtained.

Place: Ahmedabad For Mukeshkumar Jain & Co.
Date : 22 June 2021 Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 106619W)

Sd/-

CA. Piyush Jain

Partner

(Membership No. 413377)
UDIN: 21413377AAAABP4470
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ANNEXURE ‘B’TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 3 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report to the Members of Gujarat State Financial Services Limited of even date)

DIRECTIONS UNDER SECTION 143(5) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ISSUED BY THE
COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIATO THE STATUTORY AUDITORS OF GUJARAT
STATE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED FOR CONDUCTING AUDIT OF ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR

2020-21:

S. No. Directions / Sub Directions | Observations / Findings

(A) Directions — General

1 Whether the company has system in place | The company is using FAS (Fox Pro) for accounting
to process all accounting transactions | of all transactions and Oracle software for recording
through IT system? If yes, the |ICD and LDS through IT system.
implications of processing of accounting
transactions outside IT system on the
integrity of the accounts along with the
financial implications, if any, may be
stated.

2 Whether there has been any restructuring | On the basis of our audit and information &
of an existing loan or cases of | explanations given to us there is no such case during
waiver/write off of Loans/Interest etc. | the financial year 2020-21. Therefore no any impact
made by lender to the company due to the | on Ind AS Financial Statements.
company’s inability to repay the loan? If
yes, the financial impact may be stated.

3 Whether funds received/receivable for | On the basis of our audit and information &
specific scheme from central/state | explanations given to us, no funds have been
agencies were properly accounted | received/ receivable from central or state agencies
for/utilized as per its term and conditions? | hence not applicable.

List the cases of deviation.

4 Whether the Company has clear | The Clause is not applicable to Company as the
title/lease  deeds for freechold and | Company is not having any freehold / leasehold land.
leasehold respectively? If not please state
the area of freehold and leasehold land for
which title/ lease deeds are not available.

5 Whether there are any cases of waiver/ | In our opinion and explanations given to us there are
write off of debts/ loans/ interest etc., if | no cases of wavier / write off of debts / loan / interest
yes, the reasons therefore and the amount | etc. during the year 2020-21.
involved.

6 Whether the proper records are | The Company is a Non-Banking Finance Company.
maintained for inventories lying with | Accordingly it does not have any inventory. This
third parties & assets received as | clause is not applicable.
gift/grant(s) from Govt. or other
authorities.

(B) Sector Specific Sub — Directions — Finance Sector

1 Whether the Company has complied with
the directions issued by Reserve Bank of
India for”

Non-Banking  Finance = Companies | In our Opinion and according to explanation given to
(NBFCs) us the Company has complied with the directions
issued by Reserve Bank of India for Non-Banking
Financial Companies
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Classification of Non-Performing Assets;
and

Capital adequacy norms for NBFCs

During the Financial Year 2020-21, the Company do
not have any Non-Performing Assets, the clause is
not applicable to the Company

As on 31/03/2021, Company is having CRAR of
7.57% (P.Y. 7.44% as against prescribed CRAR of
12%) as against prescribed CRAR of 13%.

The above CRAR is as per RBI Notification No.
RBI/2019-20/170/DOR  (NBFC) CC. PD. No.
109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated 13™ March, 2020 &
RBI Notification No. RBI/2020-21/15 DOR (NBFC)
CC. PD. No. 116/22.10.106/2020-21 dated July 24,
2020.

Master Direction DNBR.PD.008/03.10.119/2016-17
(Updated as on February 17, 2020) issued by Reserve
Bank of India, Government NBFCs confirming to
Section 2(45) of the Companies Act, 2013 for
Systemically  Important  Non-Deposit  taking
Company or Deposit taking Company (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2016 of the RBI Act is made
applicable on the company from May 31, 2018.

As per the above notification, timeline for
government NBFC to comply with CRAR of year
ended March 31, 2021 prescribed CRAR for
government NBFC is 13%.

Therefore the company is not maintaing with
prescribed CRAR of 13%.

As per directives mentioned Para 1.1 of Section A of
Master Direction DNBS.PPD. No.
04/66.15.001/2016-17 dated June 8, 2017 the
company has failed to form IT Strategy Committee.

2 Whether the Company has a system to
ensure that loans were secured by
adequate security free from
encumbrances and have first charge on
mortgaged assets. Further instances of
undue delay in disposal of seized units
may be reported.

Since the Company has been sanctioning and
disbursing loans to Government of Gujarat Entities
only, the said clause is not applicable.

3 Whether introduction of any scheme for
settlement of dues and extensions thereto
complied with policy / guidelines of
Company / Government.

The policy for settlement of dues and extensions
thereto has been defined By the Company. However
there was no such settlement of dues or extension
done during the F.Y.:2020-21.

4 Comment on the confirmation of
balances of trade receivables, trade
payables, term deposits, bank accounts
and cash obtained.

Yes, the Confirmation for loans, bank accounts &
Cash Balances are obtained.

5 Whether the bank guarantees have been
revalidated in time?

Not Applicable.

Place: Ahmedabad
Date : 22 June 2021

For Mukeshkumar Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 106619W)

Sd/-

CA. Piyush Jain

Partner

(Membership No. 413377)
UDIN: 21413377AAAABP4470
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ANNEXURE ‘C’TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report to the Members of Gujarat State Financial Services Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub- section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of GUJIARAT STATE FINANCIAL
SERVICES LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind AS Financial Statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind
AS Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the company; and
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3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the Ind AS Financial
Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an internal financial controls system with reference to
Ind AS Financial Statements and such internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS Financial Statements
were operating effectively as at 31%* March, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

Place: Ahmedabad For Mukeshkumar Jain & Co.
Date : 22 June 2021 Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 106619W)

Sd/-

CA. Piyush Jain

Partner

(Membership No. 413377)
UDIN: 21413377AAAABP4470
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GUJARAT STATE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

CIN: U65910GJ1992SGC018602

Balance Sheet As At March 31, 2021 R in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS Note As at
No March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
ASSETS
(1) Financial assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 5 21249.55 43699.05
(b) Loans 6 1197012.96 1184935.40
(c) Investments 7 3761316.52 3208037.04
(d) Other Financial Assets 8 16091.14 12944.69
Total Financial Assets 4995670.17 4449616.18
(2) Non-Financial assets
(a) Current tax assets (Net) 26.3 1509.70 1972.73
(b) Property, Plant and Equipment 9 32.93 39.46
(c) Other non-financial assets 10 4.56 4.06
Total Non-Financial Assets 1547.19 2016.25
Total assets 4997217.36 4451632.43
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITY
(1) Financial liabilities
(a) Payables
Trade Payables 11
i)  total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and
small enterprises - 4.27 4.43
i) total outstanding due to creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises - 15.86 15.34
(b) Deposits 12 4379673.85 3926365.64
(c) Other financial liabilities 13 125449.99 139028.17
Total Financial Liabilities 4505143.97 4065413.58
(2) Non-Financial Liabilities
(a) Current tax liabilities (Net) 0.00 0.00
(b) Provisions 14 8.85 5.02
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 26.6 30053.25 31563.71
(d) Other non - financial Liabilities 15 2465.61 3329.67
Total Non-Financial Liabilities 32527.71 34898.40
(3) EQUITY
(a) Equity share capital 16 13799.61 13799.61
(b) Other equity 17 445746.07 337520.84
Total Equity 459545.68 351320.45
Total Liabilities and Equity 4997217.36 4451632.43
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements
As per our Report of even date
Sd/- Sd/-
For Mukeshkumar Jain & Co. Pankaj Joshi Sunil Talati
Firm’s Registration No: 106619W Managing Director Director
Chartered Accountants (DIN:01532892) (DIN:00621947)
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Piyush Jain Nitin Shah Neeraj Jain
Partner Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No:413377 (ACS:44725)
UDIN : 21413377AAAABP4470
Place : Ahmedabad Place : Gandhinagar
Date : 22/06/2021 Date : 22/06/2021
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GUJARAT STATE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021

(X in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS Note For the year ended
No March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Revenue from operations
i Interest Income 201 132723.88 133769.08
i Net gain on fair value changes 20.2 179064.19 217471.52
() Total Revenue from Operations 311788.07 351240.60
() Other Income 21 2854.15 7867.15
(lll) Total revenue (I + ) 314642.22 359107.75
Expenses
i Finance cost 22 267004.54 298239.35
i Employee benefits expense 23 383.12 327.85
ii  Depreciation and amortisation expenses 9 13.62 17.25
iv.  Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses 33 1650.00 357.43
% Other Expense 24 535.99 1152.07
(IV) Total expenses 269587.27 300093.95
V  Profit before tax (1l - IV) 45054.95 59013.80
VI Tax Expenses :: 26.1
a Current tax (11247.19) (13241.62)
b Deferred tax 8045.12 (2877.65)
c Adjustment of earlier year tax 955.22 (4.80)
Total tax expense (2246.85) (16124.07)
VIl Profit for the Year (V - VI) 42808.10 42889.73
VIl Other comprehensive income
a Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations 259 (4.55) (6.57)
Fair value gain / (loss) on investment in equity instruments
measured as fair value through OCI 75406.23 10706.57
b Income tax relating to ltems that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss 26.2 (6534.65) (3741.30)
68867.03 6958.70
IX Total Comprehensive Income (VII+VIil) 111675.13 49848.43
X  Earnings per Equity Share (face value of ¥ 10 each)
Basic - ¥ 31 31.02 31.08
Diluted - % 31.02 31.08
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements
As per our Report of even date
Sd/- Sd/-
For Mukeshkumar Jain & Co. Pankaj Joshi Sunil Talati
Firm’s Registration No: 106619W Managing Director Director

Chartered Accountants

(DIN:01532892)

(DIN:00621947)

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Piyush Jain Nitin Shah Neeraj Jain
Partner Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No:413377 (ACS:44725)
UDIN : 21413377AAAABP4470
Place : Ahmedabad Place : Gandhinagar
Date : 22/06/2021 Date : 22/06/2021
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

A. Equity share capital ( in Lakhs)
Particulars As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 13799.61 13799.61
Changes during the year 0.00 0.00
Balance at the reporting period 13799.61 13799.61
B. Other equity ( in Lakhs)
Reserves & Surplus Equity Total
Particulars General Retained |Reservefund| Securities | Impairment | |nstruments
Reserves Earnings | u/s 45-IC (1) | premium Reserve through
Of Reserve Other
Bank Of compre-
India Act, hensive
1934 Income
Balance as at April 01, 2020 170457.39 14097.45 139407.89 4757.17 6092.97 337520.84
Profit for the period 42808.10 42808.10
Transfer from Retained Earnings (8562.00) 8562.00 0.00
Transfer to impairment reserve (56.56) 56.56 0.00
Items of the OCI for the year, net of tax
Remeasurement benefit of defined benefit plans (4.55) (4.55)
Net fair value gain/(loss) on investment in equity
instruments through OCI (Net of Taxes) 68871.58 68871.58
Dividends (3449.90) (3449.90)
Balance as at March 31, 2021 201192.48 22659.45 139407.89 4813.73 74964.55 445746.07
Balance as at April 01, 2019 137527.49 5519.50 139407.89 0.00 (872.30) 284290.55
Profit for the period 42889.73 42889.73
Transfer from Retained Earnings (8577.95) 8577.95 0.00
Transfer to Impairment Reserve from
contingent provision against standard assets
of balance lying on April 01, 2019 4673.60 4673.60
Transfer to impairment reserve (83.57) 83.57 0.00
Items of the OCI for the year, net of tax
Remeasurement benefit of defined benefit plans (6.57) (6.57)
Net fair value gain/(loss) on investment in equity
instruments through OCI (Net of Taxes) 6965.27 6965.27
Dividends (including tax on dividend) (1291.74) (1291.74)
Balance as at March 31, 2020 170457.39 14097.45 139407.89 4757.17 6092.97 337520.84

1 General reserve

The general reserve is a free reserve which is used on time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes.

2 Reserve fund u/s 45-IC (1) Of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
As required by section 45-IC of the RBI Act 1934, the company maintains a reserve fund and transfers there in a sum not less than twenty per cent of its net profit every
year as disclosed in the profit and loss account and before any dividend is declared. The company cannot appropriate any sum from the reserve fund except for the
purpose specified by Reserve Bank of India from time to time. Till date RBI has not specified any purpose for appropriation of Reserve fund maintained under section
45-IC of RBI Act,1934.

3 Impariment Reserve
As per RBI circular no. RBI/2019-20/170 DOR(NBFC).CC.PD.No. 109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020, impairment reserve is created on excess of
provisioning required as per Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provision norms of RBI over impairment allowance under Ind AS — 109.
As per RBI circular no. RBI1/2019-20/170 DOR(NBFC).CC.PD.No. 109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020, NBFCs are required to provide for impairment on
financial assets in accordance with Ind AS. Further, as per the circular, impairment reserve is required to be created on excess of provisioning required as per Income
Recognition, Asset Classification and Provision (IRACP) norms of RBI (including standard assets) over impairment allowance under Ind AS — 109.In accordance with
ECL method as prescribed in Ind AS - 109, impairment allowance worked out as Nil. Consequently, excess amount of contingent provision against standard assets as
computed as per IRAC norms is transferred to “Impairment Reserve”

4 Securities Premium
Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013.

5 Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income
The company has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of investments in equity securities in other comprehensive income. This reserve represents the
cumulative gains and losses arising on the revaluation of equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. The company transfers
amounts from this reserve to retained earnings when the relevant equity securities are disposed off.

As per our Report of even date Sd/- Sd/-

For Mukeshkumar Jain & Co. Pankaj Joshi Sunil Talati

Firm’s Registration No: 106619W Managing Director Director

Chartered Accountants

(DIN:01532892)

(DIN:00621947)

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Piyush Jain Nitin Shah Neeraj Jain
Partner Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No:413377
UDIN : 21413377AAAABP4470

Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 22/06/2021

Place : Gandhinagar
Date : 22/06/2021

(ACS:44725)
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Statement of Cash Flow For The Year Ended March 31, 2021

(X in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020

(A) | Cash flow from Operating Activities
Profit / (Loss) before tax 45054.95 59013.80
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 13.62 17.25
Unrealised (gain)/loss on FVTPL investments 517.92 (3560.15)
Interest Accrued but not due on Loans provided to GOG entities (6417.22) (4354.46)
Interest Accrued but not due on Loans given to employees (2.65) (2.62)
Interest accrued but not due on Government securities and Bond (9555.36) (8527.15)
Interest Accrued but not due on Funds with Primary Dealers (77.76) (22.62)
Interest accrued but not due on ICDs 115303.80 117005.82
Interest Accrued and due on Liquid Deposit Scheme 3181.09 1794.55
Interest accrued and due on Inter Corporate Deposits 6942.10 6089.43
Amortization of Premium paid on Non Current Investment (Net) 55.58 47.31
Interest on Income Tax 44.77 73.95
Provision for Leave Encashment & Gratuity 3.83 1.07
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations (4.55) (6.57)
(Profit) / Loss on Sale of Tangible Assets (0.48) (0.71)
Dividend Received (2610.78) (7865.24)
Operating profit / (loss) before working capital changes 152448.86 159703.66
Changes in working capital:
(Increase) / Decrease in Loans (12077.54) (19404 .44)
(Increase) / Decrease in Investments (478446.76) (188383.99)
(Increase) / Decrease in other financial assets 12906.52 10587.54
(Increase) / Decrease in other non financial assets (0.50) (1.45)
Increase / (Decrease) in other financial Liabilities (139005.17) (124910.22)
Increase / (Decrease) in other non financial Liabilities (864.06) 0.37
Increase / (Decrease) in Deposits 453308.21 174783.23
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade payables 0.36 (227.85)
Cash Generated from Operations: (11730.08) 12146.85
Taxes Paid (net of refunds) (9873.70) (19289.95)
Net Cash from Operating Activities (A) (21603.78) (7143.10)

(B) | Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Dividend Received 2610.78 7865.24
Purchase of Tangible Assets (7.29) (16.28)
Sale of Tangible Assets 0.69 1.02
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities (B) 2604.18 7849.98

(C) | Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Dividend paid (Including DDT if any) (3449.90) (1291.74)
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities (C) (3449.90) (1291.74)
Net Increase/ (decrease) in Cash & Cash equivalents (A+B+C) (22449.50) (584.86)
Cash & Cash equivalents at beginning of the Year 43699.05 44283.91
Cash & Cash equivalents at end of the Year 21249.55 43699.05
Component of Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash on hand 0.47 0.53
Balances with banks 21249.02 43698.46
Stamp on hand 0.01 0.01
Balance in Government Treasury 0.05 0.05
Cash & Cash equivalents at end of the Year 21249.55 43699.05

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our Report of even date Sd/- Sd/-

For Mukeshkumar Jain & Co. Pankaj Joshi Sunil Talati

Firm’s Registration No: 106619W Managing Director Director

Chartered Accountants (DIN:01532892) (DIN:00621947)

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

Piyush Jain Nitin Shah Neeraj Jain

Partner Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No:413377 (ACS:44725)

UDIN : 21413377AAAABP4470

Place : Ahmedabad Place : Gandhinagar

Date : 22/06/2021 Date : 22/06/2021
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GUJARAT STATE FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2021

1 Company overview

Gujarat State Financial Services Limited (the ‘Company’) is a public limited company domiciled in India
and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act with its registered office located at Wing
“B”, 3rd floor, Khanij bhavan, 132 ft. Ring Road, Near University Ground, Vastrapur, Ahmedabad — 380052.
The company is also Systematically Important Non-deposit Taking Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC)
registered with Reserve Bank of India (RBI).

Government of Gujarat is holding 77% equity shares of the company. The Company has been given the
mandate by the State Government to manage the surplus funds of various Government of Gujarat controlled
entities and Public Sector Units of the State. Thus it acts as an in-house treasury manager to the various
State owned entities.

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on June 22, 2021.
2 Basis of preparation
2.1 Statement of compliance

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified
under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 and the
provisions of the RBI as applicable to Systematically Important Non-deposit Taking NBFC.

2.2 Basis of measurement

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items
which are measured at fair values:

a. certain financial assets and liabilities

b. defined benefit plans assets
2.3 Functional and presentation currency

Indian rupee is the functional and presentation currency.
2.4 Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
estimates, judgments and assumptions.

These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period.

Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances
surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in
which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex and subjective
judgments and the use of assumptions in these financial statements are:

- Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

- Valuation of financial instruments

- Provisions and contingencies

- Income tax and deferred tax

- Consideration of significant related party transactions

- Measurement of defined employee benefit obligations
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3.2

Estimation of Uncertainties relating to the Global Health Pandemic from COVID - 19 (“Covid - 19”)

The COVID — 19 impact on global and Indian Financial Markets as well as global and local economic
activities will depend on the future developments, which are highly uncertain. However, the Company is
expecting that the possible effects due to COVID — 19 on the financial position and performance of the
company may not be significant as the Company financed only to the Government of Gujarat companies.

The company has also considered the possible effects that may result from the COVID — 19 on the
carrying amount of investments in Liquid/debt schemes of mutual funds, equity shares, funds with primary
dealers and debt securities based on the internal and external source of information up to the date of
approval of the financial statements. The company expects that the carrying amount of these assets will
be recovered.

Significant accounting policies
Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the revenue can be reliably measured.

Interestincome

Interest income is recognised using effective interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through expected life of the financial asset to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the company estimates
the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not
consider the expected credit losses. Interest on overdue interest is recognized in the year of its receipts.

Dividend
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established.
Gain or loss on derecognition of financial assets

Gain or Loss on derecognition of financial asset is determined as the difference between the sale price
(net of selling costs) and carrying value of financial asset. Gains/(loss) on Investments i.e. from units of
Asset Management Companies is accounted on FIFO method at the time of redemption/ realisation made.

Bad Debt Recovery

Bad debt recovery is recognised as income in the year of receipt.

All other incomes are recognised and accounted for on accrual basis.
Property, plant and equipments

Property, plant and equipments are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

The cost comprises the purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Any trade discounts and
rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Subsequent expenditures relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the company and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably.

All other expenses on existing fixed assets, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and
cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such
expenses are incurred.

For transition to Ind AS, the carrying value of property plant and equipment under previous GAAP as on 01
April 2017 is regarded as its cost. The carrying value was original cost less accumulated depreciation and
cumulative impairment.

Property, plant and equipment not ready for the intended use on the date of the Balance Sheet are disclosed
as “Capital work-in-progress”.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipments are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset at the time of disposal and are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.
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3.3

3.4
3.41

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on written down value method basis using the
ratio arrived as per the useful life prescribed under Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013.

In respect of property, plant and equipment purchased during the year, depreciation is provided on a pro-
rata basis from the date on which such asset is ready to use. Assets costing less than rupees ten thousand
each is fully depreciated in the year of purchase.

The residual value, useful live and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed
at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognised, only where it is probable that future economic benefits attributable to
the asset will accrue to the enterprise and the cost can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are stated at cost, less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets not ready for the intended use on the date of the Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Intangible
Assets Under Development”.

Separately purchased intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Subsequently, intangible assets are
carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets are amortized over the expected duration of benefit or a period of ten years on a straight-
line basis. Intangible assets acquired / purchased during the year are amortised on a pro-rata basis from
the date on which such assets are ready to use.

The residual value, useful live and method of amortization of intangible assets are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Financial Instruments
Initial recognition

The company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value on initial recognition.

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not at fair value through profit or loss are added to or deducted from the fair value of
financial assets or financial liabilities on initial recognition.

Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted for at trade date.

3.4.2 Subsequent measurement

a Non-derivative financial instruments
i Financial assets carried at amortized cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business
model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

ii  Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

The Company has made an irrevocable election for its investments which are classified as
equity instruments to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive
income based on its business model. For such equity instruments, the subsequent changes in
fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income.
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3.4.3

3.44

3.4.5

3.5

iii  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently measured
at fair valued through profit or loss. Fair value changes are recognised as income in the Statement
of Profit or Loss.

iv  Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
b  Equity instruments

An equity instrument is a contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the company after
deducting all of its liabilities. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of equity instruments
are recognised as a deduction from equity instrument net of any tax effects.

Derecognition

The company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS
109. Afinancial liability is derecognized when obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled
or expires.

Off-setting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the balance sheet
when the company currently has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amount and intends
either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Modification

A modification of a financial asset occurs when the contractual terms governing the cash flows of a
financial asset are renegotiated or otherwise modified between initial recognition and maturity of the
financial asset. A modification affects the amount and/or timing of the contractual cash flows either
immediately or at a future date. The Company renegotiates loans to customers in financial difficulty to
maximize collection and minimize the risk of default. Aloan forbearance is granted in cases where although
the borrower made all reasonable efforts to pay under the original contractual terms, there is a high risk of
default or default has already happened and the borrower is expected to be able to meet the revised
terms. The revised terms in most of the cases include an extension of the maturity of the loan, changes to
the timing of the cash flows of the loan (principal and interest repayment), reduction in the amount of cash
flows due (principal and interest forgiveness).

Not all changes in terms of loans are considered as renegotiation and changes in terms of a class of
obligors that are not overdue is not considered as renegotiation and is not subjected to deterioration in
staging.

Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefit by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques
that are used to measure fair value that are either observable or unobservable and consists of the following
three levels:
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3.6

3.6.1

3.6.2

3.7
3.71

Level 1 —inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 —inputs are other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived prices)

Level 3 — inputs are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).Fair values are determined
in whole or in part using a valuation model based on assumption that are neither supported by prices from
observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market
data.

Income tax
Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax.
Current Tax

Current tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax for current and prior periods is recognized at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered
from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset, where company has a legally enforceable right to
set off the recognised amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except to the extent that the
deferred tax liability arises from initial recognition of goodwill; or initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction which is not a business combination and at the time of transaction, affects neither accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax
losses and carry forward of unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which those temporary differences, losses and tax credit can be utilized, except when
deferred tax asset on deductible temporary differences arise from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and at the time of the transaction, affects
neither accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on the tax rules and tax laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, where company has a legally enforceable right
to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Impairment
Financial assets

The Company recognizes impairment on financial assets, which are not carried at fair value, using expected
credit loss (ECL) model as prescribed in Ind AS.

The expected credit losses (ECLSs) is recognized based on forward-looking information for all financial
assets at amortized cost, no impairment loss is applicable on equity investments.

At the reporting date, an allowance is required for the 12 month ECLs. If the credit risk has significantly
increased since initial recognition (Stage 1), an allowance (or provision) should be recognized for the
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lifetime ECLs for financial instruments for which the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition (Stage 2) or which are credit impaired (Stage 3).

The measurement of ECL is calculated using three main components: (i) probability of default (PD) (ii)
loss given default (LGD) and (iii) the exposure at default (EAD). The 12 month ECL is calculated by
multiplying the 12 month PD, LGD and the EAD. The 12 month and lifetime PDs represent the PD occurring
over the next 12 months and the remaining maturity of the instrument respectively. The EAD represents
the expected balance at default, taking into account the repayment of principal and interest from the
balance sheet date to the default event together with any expected drawdowns of committed facilities.
The LGD represents expected losses on the EAD given the event of default, taking into account, among
other attributes, the mitigating effect of collateral value at the time it is expected to be realised and the
time value of money.

The Company applies a three-stage approach to measure ECL on financial assets accounted for at
amortized cost. Assets migrate through the following three stages based on the change in credit quality
since initial recognition.

Stage 1: 12-months ECL

For exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and
that are not credit impaired upon origination, the portion of the lifetime ECL associated with the probability
of default events occurring within the next 12 months is recognized. Exposures with days past due (DPD)
less than or equal to 29 days are classified as stage 1. The Company has identified zero bucket and
bucket with DPD less than or equal to 29 days as two separate buckets.

Stage 2: Lifetime ECL — not credit impaired

For credit exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but
that are not credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognized. Exposures with DPD equal to 30 days but less
than or equal to 89 days are classified as stage 2. At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk for financial asset since initial recognition by comparing
the risk of default occurring over the expected life between the reporting date and the date of initial
recognition. The Company has identified cases with DPD equal to or more than 30 days and less than or
equal to 59 days and cases with DPD equal to or more than 60 days and less than or equal to 89 days as
two separate buckets.

Stage 3: Lifetime ECL — credit impaired

Financial asset is assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred. For financial asset that have become credit
impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognized on principal outstanding as at period end. Exposures with DPD
equal to or more than 90 days are classified as stage 3.

Aloan that has been renegotiated due to a deterioration in the borrower’s condition is usually considered
to be credit-impaired unless there is evidence that the risk of not receiving contractual cash flows has
reduced significantly and there are no other indicators of impairment.

ECL is recognized on EAD as at period end. If the terms of a financial asset are renegotiated or modified
due to financial difficulties of the borrower, then such asset is moved to stage 3, lifetime ECL under stage
3 on the outstanding amount is applied.

The Company assesses when a significant increase in credit risk has occurred based on quantitative and
qualitative assessments. Exposures are considered to have resulted in a significant increase in credit risk
and are moved to Stage 2 when:

Quantitative test: Accounts that are 30 calendar days or more past due move to Stage 2 automatically.
Accounts that are 90 calendar days or more past due move to Stage 3 automatically.

Reversal in Stages: Exposures will move back to Stage 2 or Stage 1 respectively, once they no longer
meet the quantitative criteria set out above. For exposures classified using the qualitative test, when they
no longer meet the criteria for a significant increase in credit risk and when any cure criteria used for credit
risk management are met.

The definition of default for the purpose of determining ECLs has been aligned to the Reserve Bank of
India definition of default, which considers indicators that the debtor is unlikely to pay and is no later than
when the exposure is more than 90 days past due.
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3.7.2

3.8

3.9

The measurement of all expected credit losses for financial assets held at the reporting date are based on
historical experience, current conditions and reasonable and supportable forecasts. The measurement of
ECL involves increased complexity and judgement, including estimation of PDs, LGD, a range of unbiased
future economic scenarios, estimation of expected lives and estimation of EAD and assessing significant
increases in credit risk.

Presentation of ECL allowance for financial asset:

Financial assets measured at amortized cost are shown separately under the head provisions and not as
a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

Write off

Impaired loans and receivables are written off, against the related allowance for loan impairment on
completion of the Company’s internal processes and when the Company concludes that there is no longer
any realistic prospect of recovery of part or all of the loan. For loans that are individually assessed for
impairment, the timing of write off is determined on a case by case basis. A write-off constitutes a de-
recognition event. The Company has a right to apply enforcement activities to recover such written off
financial assets. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to the income
statement.

Non-financial assets
Tangible and intangible assets

The company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any indication exists the company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount.

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an assets net selling price and its value in use. The
recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.

Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired
and is written down to its recoverable amount. The impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit
and loss.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset.

In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing cost includes interest and other costs that company has incurred in connection with the borrowing
of funds.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost
of the respective asset.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the year they occur.

Investment income earned on temporary investment of specific borrowing pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefits for salary that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the
end of the reporting period in which employees render the related service are recognized as an expense
in the statement of profit and loss.

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The company has no
obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The company recognizes contribution
payable to the provident fund scheme as an expenditure, when an employee renders the related service.

The company operates two defined benefit plan for its employees, viz., gratuity plan and leave encashment
plan. The costs of providing benefits under the plans are determined on the basis of actuarial valuation at
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3.10

3.1

3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

each year-end. Actuarial valuation is carried out using the projected unit credit method made at the end of
each reporting date. Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability (asset) comprise of actuarial
gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability (asset) and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest
on the net defined benefit liability / (asset)).Re-measurement are recognised in other comprehensive
income and will not be reclassified to profit or loss in a subsequent period.

Provisions

A provision is recognized when the company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
liability.When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised
as afinance cost.

Provisions are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on the best estimate
required to settle the obligation at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent Liability

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases
where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The company
does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Contingent Asset

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only be occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the company. The company does not recognize a contingent asset but discloses its existence in the
financial statements.

Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank (including
demand deposits) and in hand and short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Lease
Company as lessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for Office building. The Company assesses
whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the
Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has
substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the
Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use (ROU) asset and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a
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term of 12 months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low-value
leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease.

The ROU assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial
direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

ROU assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments.
The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable,
using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases.

Lease liability and ROU assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments
have been classified as financing cash flows.

3.16 Segment Reporting

An operating segment is component of the company that engages in the business activity from which the
company earns revenues and incurs expenses, for which discrete financial information is available and
whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker, in deciding about
resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance. The company’s chief operating
decision maker is the Managing Director.

Assets and liabilities that are directly attributable or allocable to segments are disclosed under each
reportable segment. All other assets and liabilities are disclosed as un-allocable.

Revenue and expenses directly attributable to segments are reported under each reportable segment. All
other expenses which are not attributable or allocable to segments have been disclosed as un-allocable
expenses.

The company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for
preparing and presenting the financial statements of the company as a whole.

3.17 Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using indirect method whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of
the transactions of non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts
and payments and items of income or expenses associated with investing and financing cash flows. The
cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

3.18 Events after reporting date

Where events occurring after the Balance Sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the
end of the reporting period, the impact of such events is adjusted within the financial statements. Otherwise,
events after the Balance Sheet date of material size or nature are only disclosed.

4 Recent accounting pronouncements issued but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards.
There is no such notification which would have been applicable from April 1, 2021.
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GUJARAT STATE FINANCIAL SERVICES LTD.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

5 Cash and Cash Equivalents X In Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
31-03-2021 31-03-2020
Cash on hand 0.47 0.53
Balances with banks 21249.02 43698.46
Stamp on hand 0.01 0.01
Balance in Government Treasury 0.05 0.05
Total 21249.55 43699.05
6 Loans (% In Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
A Measured at amortised cost
i Term loans 1196999.12 1184933.22
i Others
Employee loan 13.84 2.18
Total (A) - Gross 1197012.96 1184935.40
Less: Impairment loss allowance - -
Total (A) - Net 1197012.96 1184935.40
B
i Secured by tangible assets 13.22 1.67
i Secured by intangible assets - -
iii Covered by bank / Government guarantees - -
iv Unsecured 1196999.74 1184933.73
Total (B) - Gross 1197012.96 1184935.40
Less: Impairment loss allowance - -
Total (B) - Net 1197012.96 1184935.40
C -1 Loans in India
i Public Sector - Government of Gujarat Entities 1196999.12 1184933.22
i Others
Employees 13.84 2.18
Total (C - 1) - Gross 1197012.96 1184935.40
Less: Impairment loss allowance - -
Total (C - I) - Net 1197012.96 1184935.40
C - Il Loans outside India - -
Total C (I+) 1197012.96 1184935.40

Government of Gujarat has issued letter of undertaking towards the loan given to certain GoG entities aggregating to

% 60042 lakhs (Previous Year ¥ 38731 lakhs) to the Company.
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8 Other Financial Assets ( in Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
a Interest accrued 16052.99 12906.85
Security and Other Deposits 37.03 37.00
Others 1.12 0.84
Total 16091.14 12944.69
8.1 Non Current 40.80 1354.17
8.2 Current 16050.34 11590.52
Total 16091.14 12944.69
9 Property, Plant and Equipment (X in Lakhs)
9.1 Property, Plant and Equipments consist of :
No. Particulars Computers | Furniture Office Vehicles Total
& Fixtures | Equipment
a Gross Block
Balance as at April 01, 2019 29.09 3.35 11.28 42.98 86.70
Additions 0.86 9.88 5.54 0.00 16.28
Deductions 1.06 0.12 0.44 0.00 1.62
Balance as at March 31, 2020 28.89 13.11 16.38 42.98 101.36
Additions 3.89 1.89 1.51 0.00 7.29
Deductions 0.79 0.18 0.00 0.00 0.97
Balance as at March 31, 2021 31.99 14.82 17.89 42.98 107.68
b Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at April 01, 2019 21.03 0.62 6.28 18.02 45.95
Additions 3.98 1.54 4.01 7.72 17.25
Deductions 0.88 0.00 0.42 0.00 1.30
Balance as at March 31, 2020 2413 2.16 9.87 25.74 61.90
Additions 2.52 2.56 3.48 5.06 13.62
Deductions 0.66 0.11 0.00 0.00 0.77
Balance as at March 31, 2021 25.99 4.61 13.35 30.80 74.75
c Net Block
Balance as at April 01, 2019 8.06 2.73 5.00 24.96 40.75
Balance as at March 31, 2020 4.76 10.95 6.51 17.24 39.46
Balance as at March 31, 2021 6.00 10.21 4.54 12.18 32.93

9.2 Company has elected to measure all its property, plant and equipments at the previous GAAP carrying amount i.e.
March 31, 2017 as its deemed cost on the date of transition i.e. April 01, 2017.
10 Other non-financial assets (% in Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Prepaid Expenses 4.39 3.89
Other advances for Expenses 0.17 0.17
Total 4.56 4.06
10.1 Non Current 0.00 0.00
10.2 Current 4.56 4.06
Total 4.56 4.06

Gujarat State Financial Services Limited 121

29th Annual Report




1 Trade Payable (% in Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises 4.27 4.43
Due to creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 15.86 15.34
Total 20.13 19.77
Disclosure in respect of Micro and Small Enterprises :

A the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any

supplier at the end of each accounting year 0.00 0.00
B the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro,

Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount

of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day

during each accounting year 0.00 0.00
C  the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making

payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the

year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and

Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006; 0.00 0.00
D  the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each

accounting year 0.00 0.00
E the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the

succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually

paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible

expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Development Act, 2006. 0.00 0.00

The above information has been complied in respect of parties to the extent

to which they could be identified as Micro and Small Enterprise on the basis

of information available with the Company.

12 Deposits (% in Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Measured at Amortised Cost
From Others (GOG entities):

Inter Corporate Deposits 4093608.42 3732522.20
Liquid deposit 286065.43 193843.44
Total 4379673.85 3926365.64

13 Other Financial Liability (% in Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Interest accrued 125426.99 124889.80
Unpaid matured deposits 0.00 1138.37
Amount received against ICD/LDS pending clearance 23.00 13000.00
Total 125449.99 139028.17
13.1 Non Current

Interest accrued 9122.87 9082.88
13.2 Current

Interest accrued 116304.12 115806.92

Unpaid matured deposits 0.00 1138.37

Amount received against ICD/LDS pending clearance 23.00 13000.00
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14 Provisions (X in Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Provision for employee benefits 8.85 5.02
Total 8.85 5.02

141 GSFS has received the permission for implementation of the 7th Pay Commission vide FD Resolution No.JNV-
01020091173-A dated 21.08.2017. However, the company has not yet received the permission from Government
of Gujarat to make payment of differential salary (arrears) to its employees. Hence the provision for contingent
liability for differential salary (arrears) for the period from 1st January, 2016 to 31st July, 2017 is not made. It is the
general practice of the company to make payment of differential salary (arrears) only after it receives the approval
from the State Government and the quantum of provision for the same can be ascertainable only after such permission

is received.

15 Other Non-Financial Liabilities (% in Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Other Advance Received 2.40 1.94
Others
Statutory dues 2463.21 3327.73
Total 2465.61 3329.67

16 Equity Share Capital (% in Lakhs)

Particulars
16.1 Authorized Capital

March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020

20,00,00,000 equity shares of ¥ 10/- each 20000.00 20000.00
(March 31, 2020: 20,00,00,000)

16.2 Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up Capital
13,79,96,059 equity shares of ¥ 10/- each 13799.61 13799.61

(March 31, 2020 : 13,79,96,059)

16.3 Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding:
Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 137996059.00 | 137996059.00
Add: Issued during the Period 0.00 0.00
Equity Shares at the end of the period 137996059.00 | 137996059.00

16.4 Rights, preferences and restrictions :

i The Company has only one class of equity shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of ¥ 10/-. Each
holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share.

ii Dividends, if any, is declared and paid in Indian Rupees. The dividend, if any, proposed by the Board of Directors is
subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

iii In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining
assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. However, no such preferential amounts exist
currently. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

16.5 Details of shareholders holding more than 5 percent shares :

Name of the Shareholder As at March 31,
2021 2020
No. of Shares | No. of Shares
% %
Governor of Gujarat along with its nominees 106280011.00 | 106280011.00
77.02% 77.02%
Gujarat State Investments Limited 31716048.00 31716048.00
22.98% 22.98%

16.6 Capital Management
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other reserves
attributable to the equity holders of the Company.

The Company’s objective for capital management is to maximize shareholder value and safeguard business continuity.
The Company determines the capital requirement based on annual operating plans and other strategic plans. The
funding requirements are met through equity and operating cash flows.
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Summary of Quantitative Data is given hereunder:

( in Lakhs)

Particulars March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Equity 13799.61 13799.61
Other Equity 445746.07 337520.84
Total 459545.68 351320.45
The company does not have any externally imposed capital requirement.
17 Other Equity ( in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
17.1 General Reserve
Balance as per previous balance sheet 2707.97 2707.97
17.2 Reserve fund u/s 45-IC (1) Of Reserve Bank Of India Act, 1934
Balance as per previous balance sheet 14097.45 5519.50
Addition During the year 8562.00 8577.95
Closing balance 22659.45 14097.45
17.3 Securities Premium
Balance as per previous balance sheet 139407.89 139407.89
Closing balance 139407.89 139407.89
17.4 Equity Instruments through Other comprehensive Income
Balance as per previous balance sheet 6092.97 (872.30)
Addition During the year 68871.58 6965.27
Closing balance 74964.55 6092.97
17.5 Retained Earnings
Balance as per previous balance sheet 170457.39 137527.49
Profit for the period 42808.10 42889.73
Transferred to Reserve fund u/s 45-IC (1) Of Reserve Bank Of India Act, 1934 (8562.00) (8577.95)
Transfer to impairment reserve (56.56) (83.57)
Dividend (P.Y.Including Dividend distribution tax) (3449.90) (1291.74)
Items of the OCI for the year, net of tax
Remasurement benefit of defined benefit plans (4.55) (6.57)
Closing balance 201192.48 170457.39
17.6 Impairment Reserve*
Balance as per previous balance sheet 475717 0.00
Addition/(Reduction) During the year 56.56 83.57
Transfer to Impairment Reserve from contingent provision against standard
assets of balance lying on April 01, 2019 0.00 4673.60
Closing balance 4813.73 4757.17
*Disclosure in compliace with RBI notification No.RBI/2019-20/170 DOR
(NBFC).CC.PD.N0.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020.
Total Other Equity 445746.07 337520.84
18 Dividend ( in Lakhs)
Particulars X Per Share 2020-2021 2019-2020
Dividend Proposed and not recognized at the end of reporting 3250 3449.90 3449.90
period (P.YX 2.50)
Dividend (P.Y.Including tax on Dividend) paid during the 32.50 3449.90 1291.74
reporting period (P.YX 1.00)
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19

Contingent liabilities and Commitments:

19.1 Contingent Liability ( in Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Disputed Income Tax Matters 737.17 827.16
Claims against company not acknowledged as debt. - -

737.17 827.16

19.2 Commitments (X in Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account
and not provided for - -

20 Revenue From Operations (% in Lakhs)

Particulars 2020-2021 2019-2020

20.1 Interest income
On Financial Assets measured at Amortized Cost
Interest on Loans 87442.19 92242.81
Interest income from Investments 43748.77 39336.41
Interest on funds placed with Primary Dealers 1532.92 2189.33
Interest on Loan Against ICD 0.00 0.53
Total 132723.88 133769.08

20.2 Net gain on Fair value changes
Net Gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss

i On Trading Portfolio
On Investments 179064.19 217471.52
Total Net gain on fair value changes 179064.19 217471.52

i Fair Value Changes:

- Unrealised (5617.92) 3560.15
- Realised 179582.11 213911.37
Total Net gain on fair value changes 179064.19 217471.52
21 Other Income (X in Lakhs)
Particulars 2020-2021 2019-2020
Others
Gain on derecongnition of Property, Plant and Equipment (NET) 0.48 0.71
Income from Lease Rental 0.00 0.97
Interest on Consumer Loan 0.07 0.06
Interest on Vehicle Loan 0.79 0.17
Interest on Income Tax Refund 242.03 0.00
Dividend income from investment measured at FVTOCI
Related to investmets derecognised during the period 0.00 0.00
Related to investmets held at the end of the period 2610.78 7865.24
Total 2854.15 7867.15
22 Finance Cost (% in Lakhs)
Particulars 2020-2021 2019-2020
22 Interest expenses on deposits on financial liabilities measured at
amortized cost
Inter Corporate Deposits 252548.48 277631.81
Liquid Deposit 14456.06 20607.54
Total Finance Cost 267004.54 298239.35
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23 Employee Benefits Expense (% in Lakhs)

Particulars 2020-2021 2019-2020
Salaries & Wages 339.54 291.27
Contribution to Provident and other funds 30.36 26.74
Employees Welfare Expenses 13.22 9.84
Total 383.12 327.85
24 Other expenses (% in Lakhs)
Particulars 2020-2021 2019-2020
Rent, taxes and energy cost 113.99 106.62
Repairs and Manitenance 8.41 9.34
Communication Cost 1.76 5.16
Printing and stationery 4.02 6.94
Advertisement and Publicity 1.58 5.78
Director Fees, allowances & expenses 0.32 4.64
Auditor’'s Fees and expenses 2.36 2.36
Legal and professional charges 18.82 52.45
Insurance 2.05 2.27
Donation to Chief Minister Relief Fund Account 0.00 850.00
Interest expenses on Income tax 44 .86 73.95
Stamp duty expenses 309.64 0.00
Other Expenditure 28.18 32.56
Total 535.99 1152.07
24.1 Payment to auditor
For Statutory Audit 2.36 2.36
For Certification and other matters 0.00 0.00
Total 2.36 2.36

25 Employee Benefits Note
251 Defined Contribution Plans
Details of amount recognized as expenses during the year for the defined contribution plans. (X in Lakhs)

Particulars 2020 - 2021 2019 - 2020
Employer’s Contribution to Provident Fund 25.76 22.94
Total 25.76 22.94

25.2 Defined Benefit Plan - Gratuity
Information about the characteristics of defined benefit plan
The benefit is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Key features are as under:

Features of the defined benefit plan| Remarks

Benefit offered For service Fifteen years or more: One month’s Salary for each completed
year.

Service Ten years or more, but less than fifteen years: 3/4th of a month’s
salary for each completed year.

Service Five years or more, but less than ten years: 15days salary for
each completed year

Salary definition Basic Salary including Dearness Allowance (if any)

Benefit ceiling Benefit ceiling of ¥ 20,00,000 was applied

Vesting conditions 5 years of continuous service (Not applicable in case of death / disability)
Benefit eligibility Upon Death or Resignation / Withdrawal or Retirement

Retirement age 58 years
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25.3 The trust is responsible for the governance of the plan.
25.4 Risk to the Plan
Following are the risk to which the plan exposes the entity :
A Actuarial Risk:
It is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the following reasons:

Adverse Salary Growth Experience: Salary hikes that are higher than the assumed salary escalation will result
into an increase in Obligation at a rate that is higher than expected.

Variability in mortality rates: If actual mortality rates are higher than assumed mortality rate assumption than the
Gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. Since there is no condition of vesting on the death benefit, the
acceleration of cashflow will lead to an actuarial loss or gain depending on the relative values of the assumed
salary growth and discount rate.

Variability in withdrawal rates: If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed withdrawal rate assumption
than the Gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. The impact of this will depend on whether the benefits
are vested as at the resignation date.

B Investment Risk:

For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified by the insurer may not
be the fair value of instruments backing the liability. In such cases, the present value of the assets is independent
of the future discount rate. This can result in wide fluctuations in the net liability or the funded status if there are
significant changes in the discount rate during the inter-valuation period.

Cc Liquidity Risk:
Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate significant level of benefits.
If some of such employees resign / retire from the company there can be strain on the cashflows.

D Market Risk:

Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of the financial markets.
One actuarial assumption that has a material effect is the discount rate. The discount rate reflects the time value of
money. An increase in discount rate leads to decrease in Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan benefits & vice
versa. This assumption depends on the yields on the corporate / government bonds and hence the valuation of
liability is exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date.

E Legislative Risk:

Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due to change in the
legislation / regulation. The government may amend the Payment of Gratuity Act thus requiring the companies to
pay higher benefits to the employees. This will directly affect the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation
and the same will have to be recognized immediately in the year when any such amendment is effective.

25.5 Reconciliation of defined benefit obligations (X in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31,
2021 2020
Defined benefit obligations as at beginning of the year 133.95 148.17
Current service cost 5.63 5.70
Interest cost 8.16 8.33
Actuarial Loss/(Gain) due to change in financial assumptions 4.84 1.82
Actuarial Loss/(Gain) due to experience (0.55) 3.54
Past Service Cost 0.00 0.00
Benefits Paid (3.70) (33.61)
Defined benefit obligations as at end of the year 148.33 133.95
25.6 Reconciliation of Plan Asset  in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31,
2021 2020
Plan Asset as at beginning of the year 138.17 148.97
Interest Income 9.19 10.23
Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest income (0.26) (1.21)
Contributions by Employer 5.99 13.79
Benefits paid (3.70) (33.61)
Plan Asset as at end of the year 149.39 138.17
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25.7 Funded Status  in Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31,
2021 2020

Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the end of the Period 148.33 133.95
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the Period 149.39 138.17
Funded Status / Deficit (1.06) (4.22)

25.8 Net amount Charged to Statement of Profit or Loss for the period  in Lakhs)
Particulars 2020-2021 2019-2020
Current Service Cost 5.63 5.70
Past Service Cost 0.00 0.00
Net Interest cost (1.03) (1.90)
Net amount recognized 4.60 3.80

25.9 Other Comprehensive income for the period (% in Lakhs)
Particulars 2020-2021 2019-2020
Components of actuarial gain/losses on obligations:
Due to Change in financial assumptions 4.84 1.82
Due to change in demographic assumption 0.00 0.00
Due to experience adjustments (0.55) 3.54
Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest income 0.26 1.21
Amounts recognized in Other Comprehensive Income 4.55 6.57

25.10 Break up of Plan Assets

Particulars As at March 31,

2021 2020
Policy of Insurance 100.00% 100.00%
Total 100.00% 100.00%

25.11 Actuarial Assumptions

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Discount Rate 6.20% 6.60%
Salary Growth Rate 7% 3% p.a. for next 1 year and 7%

p.a. thereafter

Withdrawal Rate

3% at younger ages reducing
to 1% at older ages

3% at younger ages reducing
to 1% at older ages

25.12 Sensitivity Analysis for Actuarial Assumption

As at 31.03.2021

Change in Assumptions

Impact on Defined Benefit Obligation

Increase Decrease Increase in Decrease in
Assumptions Assumptions
% % T in Lakhs % T in Lakhs %
Discount Rate 0.50% 0.50% (4.07) -2.74% 4.26 2.87%
Salary Growth Rate 0.50% 0.50% 0.45 0.30% (0.41) -0.28%
Withdrawal rate 10.00% 10.00% 0.28 0.19% (0.27) -0.18%

As at 31.03.2020

Change in Assumptions

Impact on Defined Benefit Obligation

Increase Decrease Increase in Decrease in
Assumptions Assumptions
% % T in Lakhs % T in Lakhs %
Discount Rate 0.50% 0.50% (3.98) -2.97% 4.17 3.11%
Salary Growth Rate 0.50% 0.50% 1.25 0.93% (1.06) -0.79%
Withdrawal rate 10.00% 10.00% 0.33 0.25% (0.33) -0.25%
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Limitation of method used for sensitivity analysis :

Sensitivity analysis produces the results by varying a single parameter & keeping all the other parameters unchanged.
Sensitivity analysis fails to focus on the interrelationship between underlying parameters. Hence, the results may vary if

two or more variables are changed.
25.13 Details of Asset- Liability Matching Strategy

There are no minimum funding requirements for a Gratuity benefits plan in India and there is no compulsion on the
part of the Company to fully or partially pre-fund the liabilities under the Plan. The trustees of the plan have outsourced
the investment management of the fund to an insurance company. The insurance company in turn manages these
funds as per the mandate provided to them by the trustees and the asset allocation which is within the permissible
limits prescribed in the insurance regulations. Due to the restrictions in the type of investments that can be held by
the fund, it may not be possible to explicitly follow an asset-liability matching strategy to manage risk actively in a

conventional fund.
25.14 Maturity Profile of the Defined Benefit Obligation

As at March 31, 2021 T in lakhs %
2022 3.84 1.80%
2023 22.64 10.50%
2024 3.42 1.60%
2025 51.52 23.90%
2026 37.43 17.40%
2027 - 2031 52.19 24.20%
As at March 31, 2020 T in lakhs %
2021 3.78 1.90%
2022 3.73 1.80%
2023 22.05 10.80%
2024 3.27 1.60%
2025 49.39 24.20%
2026 - 2030 84.01 41.10%
26 Income Tax expense
26.1 Income tax expense in the statement of profit and loss comprises of: ( in Lakhs)
Particulars 2020 - 2021 2019 - 2020
Current income tax in statement of profit and loss 11247.19 13241.62
Adjustments related to earlier year tax (955.22) 4.80
Deferred tax in statement of profit and loss
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary difference (8045.12) 2877.65
Deferred tax expense / (income) (8045.12) 2877.65
Income tax expense 2246.85 16124.07
26.2 Deferred tax items relating to OCI (% in Lakhs)
Particulars 2020 - 2021 2019 - 2020
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary difference 6534.65 3741.30
Deferred tax expense / (income) 6534.65 3741.30
26.3 The details of income tax assets and liabilities and Deferred tax liabilities : ( in Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Income tax assets (12900.80) (29383.61)
Income tax liabilities 11391.10 27410.88
Net Income Tax (Assets) / Liability (1509.70) (1972.73)
Deferred tax (Assets) / Liability 30053.25 31563.71
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26.4 A reconciliation of the income tax provision to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax

rate to the income before income taxes is summarized below: (X in Lakhs)
Particulars 2020 - 2021 2019 - 2020
a Accounting profit before tax 45054.95 59013.80
Normal tax rate 25.168% 34.944%
Tax liability on accounting profit 11339.43 20621.79
Tax Effect of non deductible expenses 575.31 973.81
Tax Effect of deductible expenses (667.55) (4360.02)
MAT credit utilization 0.00 (3993.96)
Income tax expenses as per normal tax rate 11247.19 13241.62

26.5
34.944% during the previous year.

During the year Company has elected to pay tax u/s 115BAA, hence applicable tax rate is 25.168% as against

26.6 Details of each type of recognized temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits:

(X in Lakhs)
Particulars Recognized DTA/DTL
in balance sheet
March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Deferred tax liability
Liquid/debt schemes of Mutual Funds 20262.84 28314.50
Investment 9807.41 3272.76
Total Deferred tax liability 30070.25 31587.26
Deferred tax asset
Property, plant and equipment 14.77 21.80
Employee benefits 2.23 1.75
Total Deferred tax asset 17.00 23.55
Net Deferred Tax Liability / (Assets) Recognized 30053.25 31563.71
27 Financial Instruments
27.1 Disclosure of Financial Instruments by Category (% in Lakhs)
As at March 31, 2021
Financial instruments by categories | Note FVTPL FVTOCI Amortized Total Fair
No. cost Carrying Value
Value
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 5 21249.55 21249.55 21249.55
Loans 6 1197012.96 | 1197012.96| 1197012.96
Investment in Liquid/debt schemes
of Mutual Funds 7 2873811.06 0.00| 2873811.06| 2873811.06
Investment in Government Securities 7 581635.29| 581635.29| 619125.20
Investment in Debt Securities 7 40000.00 40000.00 40000.00
Investment in Equity Shares 7 227908.74 0.00| 227908.74| 227908.74
Deposit Placed with Primary Dealers 7 37961.43 37961.43 37961.43
Other Financial Assets 8 16091.14 16091.14 16091.14
Total Financial Assets 2873811.06 | 227908.74| 1893950.37 | 4995670.17 | 5033160.08
Financial Liabilities
Trade Payables 11 20.13 20.13 20.13
Deposits 12 4379673.85| 4379673.85| 4379673.85
Other Financial Liabilities 13 125449.99| 125449.99| 125449.99
Total Financial Liabilities 0.00 0.00 | 4505143.97 | 4505143.97 | 4505143.97
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As at March 31, 2020

(% in Lakhs)

Financial instruments by categories | Note FVTPL FVTOCI | Amortized Total Fair

No. cost Carrying Value

Value

Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 5 43699.05 43699.05 43699.05
Loans 6 1184935.40| 1184935.40| 1184935.40
Investment in Liquid/debt schemes
of Mutual Funds 7 2559966.52 0.00| 2559966.52 | 2559966.52
Investment in Government Securities 7 438451.97| 438451.97| 477236.31
Investment in Debt Securities 7 40000.00 40000.00 40000.00
Investment in Equity Shares 7 152502.51 0.00| 152502.51| 152502.51
Deposit Placed with Primary Dealers 7 17116.04 17116.04 17116.04
Other Financial Assets 8 12944.69 12944.69 12944.69
Total Financial Assets 2559966.52| 152502.51| 1737147.15| 4449616.18 | 4488400.52
Financial Liabilities
Trade Payables 11 19.77 19.77 19.77
Deposits 12 3926365.64 | 3926365.64 | 3926365.64
Other Financial Liabilities 13 139028.17| 139028.17| 139028.17
Total Financial Liabilities 0.00 0.00| 4065413.58| 4065413.58 | 4065413.58

27.2 The company invested in equity shares of various companies as per the directives of Finance Department of
Government of Gujarat during F.Y. 2018-19. The investment being considered as strategic, the company has classified
such investment as not held for trading. In view of this, such investments are measured as fair value through other

comprehensive income.

28 Fair Value Measurement

Fair Value Measurement (FVM) of Financial Assets and Liabilities

28.1 Fair value hierarchy (% in Lakhs)
As at March 31, 2021 Note No. Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL -

Recurring FVM

Investments in Liquid/debt schemes of

Mutual Funds 7 | 2873811.06 2873811.06

2873811.06 0.00 0.00( 2873811.06

Financial Assets measured at Amortized Cost -

Recurring FVM

Investments in Government Securities 619125.20 619125.20

Investments in Debt Securities 40000.00 40000.00

Deposit Placed with Primary Dealers 37961.43 37961.43
697086.63 0.00 0.00( 697086.63

Financial Assets Measured at FVTOCI -

Recurring FVM

Investments in Equity Shares 211129.74 16779.00 227908.74
211129.74 16779.00 0.00 227908.74
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(X in Lakhs)

As at March 31, 2020 Note No. Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL -

Recurring FVM

Investments in Liquid/debt schemes of

Mutual Funds 7 | 2559966.52 2559966.52

2559966.52 0.00 0.00| 2559966.52

Financial Assets measured at Amortized Cost -

Recurring FVM

Investments in Government Securities 477236.31 477236.31

Investments in Debt Securities 40000.00 40000.00

Deposit Placed with Primary Dealers 17116.04 17116.04
534352.35 0.00 0.00 534352.35

Financial Assets Measured at FVTOCI -

Recurring FVM

Investments in Equity Shares 137865.51 14637.00 152502.51
137865.51 14637.00 0.00( 152502.51

28.2

Fair Value of Investments in Government Securities, Liquid/debt schemes of Mutual Funds and Equity Shares,

except equity shares of Gujarat State Petroleum Corporation Limited (GSPC), are based on quoted prices.

28.3

Valuation technique and inputs used to determine fair value in level 2

Fair Value of Investment in shares of GSPC is based on the Valuation report of the Registered Valuer (C.Y.
I 9.87, P.Y.¥ 8.61) per Equity Share as these shares are unlisted.

28.4
prevailing market rate of interest.

28.5

The Fair value of Loan given approximate carrying value as the interest rate of the said instruments are at the

The carrying amount of financial liabilities carried at amortized cost are a reasonable approximation of their fair

values since the Company does not anticipate that the carrying amounts would be significantly different from the
values that would eventually be received or settled.

28.6

to be the same as their carrying amount because they are of short term nature.

28.7

28.8
of the reporting period.

29 Financial Risk Management
29.1

There are no transfer between level 1 and level 2 during the year.

Financial Instruments Risk management objectives and Policies

The Fair value of current financial assets and current financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost are considered

The policy of the company is to recognise transfers into and transfer out of fair values hierarchy levels as at the end

The Company has the principal mandate of management of surplus Funds of GoG entities. It endeavours to fulfil its
objective of providing maximum benefit to the GoG entities while operating in the changing nature of financial
markets. This warrants an active operations of funds management. Since the company is engaged in financial
activities, it is exposed to financial risks i.e. market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. These risks are monitored and
managed by the Management under the overall policy formulation of the Board. The Credit and Investment norms
of the Company are formulated by the Board so as to mitigate the financial risks and at the same time to fulfil the
unique nature of objectives of the Company. Periodically the Board reviews financial market conditions and gives
appropriate directions, whenever required. The Finance Committee, a sub-Committee of the Board, is delegated
with the task of sanctioning various credit and investment proposals which are within the norms specified by the
Board. Such sanctions are put up before the Board for ratification in a well laid out mechanism through which the
board oversees the Compliance framework of the Company.

29.2 Market Risk

The market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. Market risk comprises interest risk and other price risk.

29.2.1 Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The company has no interest rate risk on borrowed fund in the form of Inter
Corporate Deposits (ICDs), Liquid Deposit scheme (LDS), investments in Gujarat Government Securities and
Municipal Corporation Bonds as rate of interest on the same is fixed during its tenure. In case of lending activities,
the company offers floating interest rates on loans to entities controlled by Government of Gujarat and funds placed
with primary dealers carry variable rate of interest. Therefore, these are covered under interest rate risk. The
Company measures risk through sensitivity analysis.
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The company’s exposure to interest rate risk is as follows :

(X in Lakhs)

Particulars March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Assets

Loans to entities controlled by Government of Gujarat 1196999.12 1184933.22

Deposit with Primary Dealers 37961.43 17116.04

1234960.55 1202049.26

Sensitivity Analysis (% in Lakhs)

Particulars Impact on Profit and Loss after tax
March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020

Assets

Interest rate increase by 50 basis point 4621 3910

Interest rate decrease by 50 basis point (4621) (3910)

29.2.2 Other price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk). The company deploys its daily surplus
funds in the Liquid and Debt schemes of mutual funds that are regulated by SEBI. The company is exposed to price
risk mainly because of changes in NAVs of units of mutual funds, which are marked to market on daily basis as per
guidelines of the Regulator. The company mitigates the risk by diversifying its deployment in various Liquid / Debt
schemes of mutual funds. The company measures risk through sensitivity analysis.

a The company’s exposure to price risk is as follows: (% in Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Investments in Liquid/debt schemes of Mutual Funds 2873811.06 2559966.52
Investments in Equity Shares 227908.74 152502.51
Total 3101719.80 2712469.03

b Sensitivity Analysis (% in Lakhs)

Particulars

Impact on Profit after Tax

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

NAV/Share Price increases by 0.5%
NAV/Share Price decreases by 0.5%

11605
(11605)

8823
(8823)

29.3 Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial assets. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to
ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. The Company'’s principal source of liquidity
are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is generated from operations. The Company ensures that it
has sufficient fund to meet lending activities, servicing of financial obligations and expected operational expenses.
The Company deploys sufficient portion of its funds into the Money Market instruments which are available at very
short notice and can be used to honour even the sudden demands of large repayments from its depositors. The
Company closely monitors its liquidity position and manages its receipts and repayments from / to GoG entities in
an optimal manner.

The table below provide details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at:

( in Lakhs)

As at March 31, 2021 Contractual | upto 1 year| 1-2years| 2-5years > 5 years
Maturity

Deposits 4379673.85 | 4055786.31| 209829.72| 114057.81 -

Other Financial liabilities 125449.99 | 116327.12 5910.23 3212.64 -

Trade Payables 20.13 20.13 - - -

4505143.97 | 4172133.56| 215739.95| 117270.45

As at March 31, 2020 Contractual | upto 1 year| 1-2years| 2-5years > 5 years
Maturity

Deposits 3926365.64 | 3636618.73 161700.0| 128046.91 -

Other Financial liabilities 139028.17 | 129945.29 5068.92 4013.97 -

Trade Payables 19.77 19.77 - - -

4065413.58 | 3766583.79| 166768.92| 132060.88 -
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29.4 Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing
to discharge an obligation. Credit risk encompasses both, the direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of
credit worthiness. Credit risk arises primarily from financial assets such as investments in government securities,
funds placed with primary dealers, investments in liquid/debt schemes of mutual funds, loans and cash and cash
equivalent. Credit risk arising from funds placed with primary dealers, investments in liquid/debt schemes of mutual
funds and cash and cash equivalent is limited as the counterparties are banks and recognized Assets Management
Companies which are regulated by RBI and SEBI. Credit risk arising from investments in government securities
and loans is limited as the exposure in the Government Securities of Gujarat State Development Loans and the
loans provided to the GoG entities have the parentage of the State Government which provides adequate comfort
to the company against the credit risk.

The maximum exposure to the credit risk is as follows : (X in Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Cash and Cash Equivalents 21249.55 43699.05
Loans 1197012.96 1184935.40
Investment in Liquid/debt schemes of Mutual Funds 2873811.06 2559966.52
Investment in Government Securities 581635.29 438451.97
Investment in Equity Shares 227908.74 152502.51
Investment in Debt Securities (Bonds) 40000.00 40000.00
Funds with Primery Dealers 37961.43 17116.04
Other Financial Assets 16091.14 12944.69

4995670.17 4449616.18

The table below shows the credit quality based on credit concentration and the maximum exposure to credit risk
based on the days past due and year-end stage classification of Loans. The amounts presented are gross of

impairment allowances. (% in Lakhs)
Loan amount As on March 31, 2021
Not overdue Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Loan given to Government of Gujarat Entities 1196999.12 0 0 0| 1196999.12
Impairment Allowances as per ECL Method 0 0 0 0 0
Provision for impairment allowance as per RBI
Regulations 4813.73 0 0 0 4813.73
Loan amount As on March 31, 2020
Not overdue Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Loan given to Government of Gujarat Entities 1184933.22 0 0 0| 1184933.22
Impairment Allowances as per ECL Method 0 0 0 0 0
Provision for impairment allowance as per RBI
Regulations 4757.17 0 0 0 4757.17

The COVID — 19 impact on global and Indian Financial Markets as well as global and local economic activities will
depend on the future developments, which are highly uncertain. However, the Company is expecting that the
possible effects due to COVID — 19 on the financial position and performance of the company may not be significant
as the Company has financed only to the Government of Gujarat companies.

The company has also considered the possible effects that may result from the COVID — 19 on the carrying amount
of investments in liquid/debt schemes of mutual funds, equity shares, funds with primary dealers and debt securities
based on the internal and external source of information up to the date of approval of the financial statements. The
company expects that the carrying amount of these assets will be recovered.

30 The Company has recognised lease payment of ¥ 101.99/- Lakhs (Previous Year ¥ 94.87/- Lakhs) in the statement
of profit and loss under the head “Rent” during the year for low value leases.
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31 Earning Per Share

Particulars March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Number of Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 137996059 137996059
Addition During the year 0 0
Number of Equity Shares at year end 137996059 137996059
Weighted Average number of Equity Shares 137996059 137996059
Particulars Units 2020-2021 2019-2020
Weighted Average number of Equity shares for calculation of

Basic EPS (A) Shares 137996059 137996059

Add: Dilutive effect if any - -
Weighted Average number of Equity shares for calculation of

Diluted EPS (B) Shares 137996059 137996059
Nominal Value per Share % / Share 10 10
Net Profit after Tax (C) T in lakhs 42808.10 42889.73
Basic EPS (C/A) % / Share 31.02 31.08
Diluted EPS (C/B) % / Share 31.02 31.08

32 Segment Reporting

The company is engaged in financial activity and all other activities of the company revolve around the main
business and therefore there are no reportable segments.

33 Disclosure of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities u/s 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is as under:

a) Gross Amount required to be spent by the Company towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activity
during the year is ¥ 576.53 lakhs (P.YX 357.43 lakhs).

b) Amount spent on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activity during the year :

(% in Lakhs)
Sr.No. Particulars 2020-2021
In Cash Yet to be Total
paid in Cash
(i)  Construction / acquisition of any assets 0.00 0.00 0.00
(ii)  On purpose other than (i) above Contribution to
“Chief Minister Relief Fund” for CSR activity 1650.00 0.00 1650.00
(iii) Expenditure on Administrative Overheads for CSR 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total 1650.00 0.00 1650.00
Sr.No. Particulars 2019-2020
In Cash Yet to be Total
paid in Cash
(i)  Construction / acquisition of any assets 0.00 0.00 0.00
(ii)  On purpose other than (i) above Contribution to
“Mukhya Mantri Swachta Nidhi” for CSR activity 357.43 0.00 357.43
(iii) Expenditure on Administrative Overheads for CSR 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total 357.43 0.00 357.43
34 Related Parties Disclosure as per Ind AS 24 :
34.1 Related Parties
Name of Related Parties Relationship
Government of Gujarat Controlling the company
Gujarat State Investments Limited Entity having significant infuence over the reporting entity (w.e.f. March
22, 2019)
Shri K. Kailashnathan, IAS Chairman
Shri Pankaj Joshi, IAS Managing Director
Shri Milind Torawane, I1AS Nominee Director
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Smt. Arti Kanwar, IAS

Shri Yamal Vyas

Shri Sunil Talati

Shri Bhadresh Mehta

Shri Kamlesh K. Patel

Shri Mehul K. Vasava

Shri Nitin Shah, Chief Financial Officer
Shri Anil Maloo, Company Secretary
Shri Neeraj Jain, Company Secretary

Nominee Director

Independent Director

Key Managerial Personnel

Independent Director (till March 22, 2020)
Independent Director (w.e.f. July 15, 2020)

Nominee Director (till October 6, 2020)
Nominee Director (w.e.f. October 14, 2020)

Key Managerial Personnel (till October 6, 2020)
Key Managerial Personnel (w.e.f.October 7, 2020)

34.2 As per Ind AS 24, another entity is a related party if the same government has control or joint control of, or significant
influence over, both the company and the other entity. In view of this, transactions entered by the Company with
other entities, which are controlled by the Government of Gujarat, are considered as transactions with related
parties.

34.3 As per Ind AS 24, the company is required to dislcose sufficient details for each individually significant transaction

and other transactions that are collectively siginificant but not individually.

The Company determines significant transaction based on facts and circumstances of each case. In deciding
whether an individual transaction is significant, the nature and the size of the transaction are evaluated together.
Depending on the circumstances, either the nature or the size of the transaction could be the determining factor. As
regards size, for the purpose of applying the test of significant transaction, all same type of transactions with one
related party entered during the year which is in excess of 10% of total related party transactions of that type is
considered as significant. As regards nature, ordinarily the related party transactions which are not entered in the
normal course of the business of the Company are considered significant subject to the facts and circumstances of

the case.

As regards collectively significant transactions but not individually, all same type of related party transactions, other
than individually significant transaction, entered during the year which is in excess of 10% of total related party

transactions of that type is considered as significant.
34.4 Disclosure of related party transactions.

34.4.1 Transactions with Government of Gujarat and entities controlled by Government of Gujarat.

a Loan Given
i Transaction during the year

Loan Disbursed ( in Lakhs)
Particulars 2020-2021 2019-2020
Gujarat Energy Transmission Corporation Limited 324400.00 57000.00
Gujarat State Petrolium Corporation Limited 0.00 110000.00
Gujarat State Petronet Limited 51200.00 4000.00
Gujarat International Finance Tec-City Co Ltd. 98100.00 0.00
Gujarat State Fertilizers & Chemicals Ltd 25000.00 362800.00
Gujarat State Electricity Corporation Limited 0.00 2000.00
GSPC LNG Limited 48100.00 95200.00
GSPC Pipavav Power Company Limited 1000.00 90146.41
Other borrowers with collectively significant transactions and not individually 149642.00 163221.01

697442.00 884367.42

ii Balance outstanding ( in Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Gujarat Energy Transmission Corporation Limited 407547.06 167176.47
Sardar Sarovar Narmada Nigam Limited 194259.26 299444 44
Gujarat State Petrolium Corporation Limited 162400.00 210000.00
Gujarat State Petronet Limited 38633.33 114000.00
Gujarat State Electricity Corporation Limited 40796.29 76101.85
GSPC Pipavav Power Company Limited 70553.33 86048.85
Other borrowers with collectively significant closing balance and not individually 282809.85 232161.61
1196999.12 1184933.22

Gujarat State Financial Services Limited 136 29th Annual Report




Investments in Government of Gujarat Securities
Transaction during the year

Company purchses securities of Government of Gujarat from the open market, hence the same are not considered

as related party transactions.
Outstanding balances

As Government of Gujarat is controlling the company, investments in Gujarat Government securities are disclosed

herewith.
(X in Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Securities of Government of Gujarat 581635.29 438451.97
Bonds of Municipal Corporation 40000.00 40000.00
c ICDs taken

i Transactions during the year (X in Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Depositors with collectively significant transactions and not individually 9159507.42 8683327.03
ii Balance outstanding (X in Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Gujarat Industrial Development Corporation 422102.32 355163.08
Depositors with collectively significant closing balances and not individually 3678448.20 3384565.17
4100550.52 3739728.25

d Liquid Deposits Taken
i Transactions during the year (% in Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Gujarat Municipal Finance Board 552773.92 818694.94
Gujarat Gas Limited 734225.00 792185.00
Gujarat Urban Development Mission 26122.20 65920.78
Gujarat State Petroleum Corporation Limited 1340060.00 1188893.15
Other Depositors with collectively significant transactions and not individually 1674972.24 1230697.20
4328153.36 4096391.07
ii Balance outstanding ( in Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Gujarat Municipal Finance Board 12247.28 10239.51
Gujarat Urban Development Company Limited 15510.70 22543.91
Gujarat Urban Development Mission 1874.19 1179.86
Gujarat Alkalies and Chemicals Ltd 33000.00 0.00
Gujarat Urban Livihood Mission 5443.74 3007.18
Gujarat State Civil Supplies Corporation Limited 2500.00 12200.00
Gujarat State Petroleum Corporation Limited 1231.80 20143.15
Gujarat Gas Limited 26100.00 38250.00
Gujarat Council of Primary Education 44700.00 44700.00
Depositors with collectively significant outstanding balances and not individually 143457.72 41579.83
286065.43 193843.44
e Interest Income ( in Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Government of Gujarat Securities 40331.73 35901.97
Gujarat Energy Transmission Corporation Limited 27297.03 15241.72
Gujarat State Petrolium Corporation Limited 14011.04 15111.86
Gujarat State Electricity Corporation Limited 3817.34 6442.20
Sardar Sarovar Narmada Nigam Limited 16009.94 26905.92
Gujarat State Petronet Limited 5701.05 13764.29
Other borrowers with collectively significant closing balance and not individually 20605.79 14776.82
127773.92 128144.78
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f Interest Expenses on ICDs (X in Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Gujarat Industrial Development Corporation 26892.25 22818.74
Depositors with collectively significant interest expenses and not individually 225656.24 254813.07

252548.49 277631.81

g Interest Expenses on Liquid Deposits (% in Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Gujarat Municipal Finance Board 2953.03 6278.24
Gujarat Urban Development Mission 161.47 889.59
Gujarat Council of Primary Education 1826.27 2713.19
Gujarat Gas Limited 1773.78 1740.43
Depositors with collectively significant interest expenses and not individually 7741.51 8986.09

14456.06 20607.54

h Rent Expenses (X in Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Gujarat Minaral Development Corporation 101.99 94.87

34.4.2 There are no transactions other than sitting fees paid to non-executive directors. During the year, ¥ 0.24 lakhs (P.Y

% 0.18 lakhs) was paid to non-executive directors towards sitting fees. Details are as under: (X in Lakhs)
Name of Directors 2020-2021 2019-2020
1)  Shri Bhadresh Mehta 0.15 0.03
2)  Shri Sunil Talati 0.09 0.00
2)  Shri Yamal Vyas 0.00 0.15

34.4.3 Compensation of Key Managerial Personnel of the Company (% in Lakhs)
Partiuclars Managing Director

2020-2021 2019-2020
Short Term Employee Benefits 0.00 0.70
Post employment benefits 0.00 0.00
Termination Benefits 0.00 0.00
Share Based Payments 0.00 0.00
Total Compensation of Key Managerial Personnel 0.00 0.70
( in Lakhs)
Partiuclars Short Term | Post employment Termination| Share Based
Employee Benefits benefits Benefits Payments
2020-2021
Shri Nitin Shah 24.90 0.00 0.00 0.00
Shri Anil Maloo (till to 06.10.2020) 7.58 6.54 0.00 0.00
Shri Neeraj Jain (w.e.f. 07.10.2020) 4.53 0.00 0.00 0.00
2019-2020
Shri Nitin Shah 21.79 0.00 0.00 0.00
Shri Anil Maloo 13.90 0.00 0.00 0.00
Shri Neeraj Jain 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3

3

5

As per the Master Direction DNBR. PD. 008/03.10.119/2016-17 dated September 01, 2016(Updated as on February

17, 2020) issued by Reserve Bank of India, Government NBFCs confirming to Section 2 (45) of the Companies Act,
2013 are exempt from applicability of the Systemically Important Non-Banking Financial (Non-Deposit Accepting or
Holding) Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2015 of the RBI Act till the issuance of further
notification no.DNBR (PD) CC No0.092/03.10.001/2017-18 dated May 31, 2018 where in RBI has withdrwan
extemptions granted to Government Owned NBFCs from adherence to prudential norms and other regulatory &
statutory provisions. During the financial year under consideration there is no NPA /Restructured advances. The
Company has not restructured any loan after applicability of the above mentioned notification dated May 31, 2018.

5.1

Disclosure in terms of Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit

taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 dated September 1, 2016 updated

as on February 17, 2020.
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35.1.1

Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
i) CRAR (%) 7.57% 7.44%
ii) CRAR - Tier | Capital (%) 7.57% 7.44%
iii) CRAR - Tier Il Capital (%) 0.00% 0.00%
iv)  Amt of subordinated debt raised as Tier-ll capital 0 0
v)  Amt raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments 0 0
35.1.2 Investments (% in Lakhs)
Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
(1) Value of Investments
(i) Gross Value of Investments
(a) In India 3761316.52 3208037.03
(b) Outside India 0 0
(ii) Provisions for Dep.
(@) In India 0 0
(b) Outside India 0 0
(iii) Net Value of Investments
(a) In India 3761316.52 3208037.03
(b) Outside India 0 0
(2) Movement of provisions held towards Dep. 0 0
(i) Opening balance 0 0
(i) Add : Provisions made during the year 0 0
(iii) Less : Write-off / write-back of excess provisions during the year 0 0
(iv) Closing balance 0 0
35.1.3 Maturity Pattern of Assets and Liabilities ( in Lakhs)
Particulars Assets Liabilities
Loans /|Investments | Borrowings Foreign
Advances to from GoG Currency
GOG entities entities Assets /
Liabilities
1 day to 7 days 2597.77| 3101976.35| 598396.67
8 day to 14 days 8715.64 6133.73| 268764.42
15 days to 30/31 days 22785.47 5921.94| 385446.73 -
Over 1 month to 2 monts 30960.06 17078.02| 550945.17 -
Over 2 month to 3 months 44659.20 15093.16| 337391.01 -
Over 3 month to 6 months 91790.51 3111.15| 905482.71 -
Over 6 month to 1 year 184797.73 0.00| 1125686.71 -
Over 1 year to 3 years 330968.73 60000.00| 333010.41 -
Over 3 year to 5 years 226730.12 53215.20 0.00 -
Over 5 years 259411.11| 507822.40 0.00 -
Total 1203416.34| 3770351.96 | 4505123.84 0
35.1.4 Exposures
a) Exposure to Real Estate Sector :-  in Lakhs)
Category 2020-21 2019-20
Direct Exposure
Residential Mortgage NIL NIL
Commercial Real Estate NIL NIL
Investment in Mortgage backed Securities and other Securitised Exposure NIL NIL
Indirect Exposure
Fund based and non fund based exposure on National Housing Bank (NHB)
and Housing Finance Companies (HFCs) NIL NIL
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b) Exposure to Capital Market :- (X in Lakhs)
Particulars 2020-21 2019-20

(i) direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures
and units of equity-oriented mutual funds the corpus of which is not exclusively
invested in corporate debt; 227908.74 152502.51

(i) advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean
basis to individuals for investment in shares (including IPOs / ESOPs),
convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and units of equity-oriented mutual
funds; 0 0

(iii) advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or
convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds are taken as
primary security;

(iv) advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral security
of shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity
oriented mutual funds i.e. where the primary security other than shares /
convertible bonds / convertible debentures / units of equity oriented mutual
funds ‘does not fully cover the advances; 0 0

(v) secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued
on behalf of stockbrokers and market makers; 0 0

(vi) loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / bonds /
debentures or other securities or on clean basis for meeting promoter’s
contribution to the equity of new companies in anticipation of raising

resources; 0 0
(vii) bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues; 0 0
(viii) all exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and unregistered) 0 0
Total Exposure to Capital Market 227908.74 152502.51

c) Details of Single Borrower Limit(SGL)/ Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by NBFC as on 31st March, 2021

Reserve Bank of India vide its letter no.DNBR(PD)CO. 1223 /03.10.001 /2018-19 dated December 18, 2018 granted
exemption to GSFS from concentration of credit norms to the extent of exposure to the Government of Gujarat
entities. However, as per disclosure norms, the following information is submitted.

( in Lakhs)
Particulars Amt
Net owned funds* 319519.91
15% of net owned fund(in case of single borrower) 47927.99
25% of net owned fund(in case of Single group of parties) 79879.98
40% of net owned fund(in case of lend and invest to Single group of parties) 127807.96

*As per RBI notification No.RBI/2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.N0.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020 &
RBI Notification No.RBI/2020-21/15 DOR(NBFC).CC.PD.N0.116/22.10.106/2020-21 dated July 24, 2020.

i) Lend to

a) Lend to any single borrower exceeding 15% of its owned funds  in Lakhs)
Name of GoG entities Amt
Gujarat Energy Transmission Co. Ltd. 407547.06
Gujarat State Petroleum Corporation Ltd. 162400.00
Gspc Pipavav Power Co. Ltd. 70553.33
Gujarat State Road Development Corporation Ltd. 60042.23
Sardar Sarovar Narmada Nigam Ltd. 194259.26
Gift City Co. Ltd. 98100.00
GSPC LNG Ltd. 48100.00

b) Lend to a single group of borrowers exceding 25 % of its owned fund  in Lakhs)
Name of GoG entity Group Amt
GSPC Group 341254.28
GUVNL Group 448343.35
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ii) Invest in

a) the shares of another company exceeding 15% of its owned fund  in Lakhs)
Name of the Company Amt
Torrent Power Ltd.* 122461.00

b) the shares of a single group of companies exceeding 25% of its owned fund  in Lakhs)
Name of the Group Amt
Torrent Group* 122461.00

* This investment is undertaken in order to retain the strategic investment of Government of Gujarat and aid the

progressive move by the State Government towards compliance of RBI regulations by GSFS.
iii) Lend and Invest (Loans / Investment taken together) exceeding

a) 25% of its owned fund to a single party; (% in Lakhs)
Name of GoG entity Amt
Gujarat State Petroleum Corporation Limited 176017.00

b) 40% of its owned fund to a single group of parties (X in Lakhs)
Name of GoG entity Group Amt
GSPC Group 354871.28

d) Unsecured Advance (X in Lakhs)
Particulars 2020-21
a) For determining the amount of unsecured advances the rights, licenses, authorisations, etc.,

charged to the applicable NBFCs as collateral in respect of projects (including infrastructure

projects) financed by them, shall not be reckoned as tangible security. Hence such advances

shall be reckoned as unsecured. 1196999.12

b)  Applicable NBFCs shall also disclose the total amount of advances for which intangible securities

such as charge over the rights, licenses, authority, etc. has been taken as also the estimated

value of such intangible collateral. The disclosure shall be made under a separate

head in NTA. This would differentiate such loans from other entirely unsecured loans. NIL
35.1.5 Miscelleneous
a) Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators -

The Company is not registered under any other regulator other than Reserve Bank of India (RBI).

b) Disclosure of Penalties imposed by RBI and Other regulators -NIL

c) Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year -NA

35.1.6 Additional Disclosures

a) Provisions and Contingencies (% in Lakhs)
Break up of ‘Provisions and Contingencies’ shown under the head
Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account 2020-21 2019-20
Provisions for diminution in value of Investment NIL NIL
Provision towards NPA NIL NIL
Provision made towards Income tax * 11247.19 13241.62
Contingent Provision against Standard Assets - -

*after availing MAT credit, if any
b) Concentration of Advances, Exposures and NPAs

Reserve Bank of India vide its letter no.DNBR(PD)CO. 1 223 /03.10.001 /2018-19 dated December 18,2018
granted exemption from concentration of credit norms to the extent of exposure to the Government of Gujarat

entities.
 in lakhs)

(a) Concentration of Advances

Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers 1196999.12

Percentage of Advances to twenty largest borrowers to Total Advances of the applicable

NBFC 100%
(b) Concentration of Exposures

Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers / customers 1196999.12

Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers to Total Exposure of

the applicable NBFC on borrowers / customers 100%
(c) Concentration of NPAs

Total Exposure to top four NPA accounts NIL
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c) Derivatives

Company has not entered in to any derivatives contracts during the year.
d) Disclosure on frauds pursuant to RBI Master direction -NIL
e) Advances against Intangible Securities

The Company has not given any loans against intangible securities.
f) Drown Down from existing Reserves

The Company has made no drawdown from existing reserves.
g) Securitization

Company has not entered in to any such transaction during the year.
h) Details of Assignment transactions

Company has not entered in to any such transaction during the year.
i) Details of financing of Parent Company products - N.A.
j) Off Balance sheet SPVs Sponsored - N.A.

k) Customer Complaints
(a) No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year NIL
(b) No. of complaints received during the year NIL
(c) No. of complaints redressed during the year NIL
(d) No. of complaints pending at the end of the year NIL

36 Disclosure of LCR (Liquidity Coverage Ratio) as per requirement of RBI Ciruclar dated November 04, 2019 on
Liquidity Risk Management Framework for Non-Banking Financial Companies and Core Investment Companies.

The RBI, vide its circular dated November 04, 2019 has made the guidelines on Liquidity Risk Management
Framework for Non Banking Financial Companies and Core Investment Companies, applicable even to the Non
Banking Finance Companies. The Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) is one of the key ratios to measure the NBFC'’s
capacity to meet its expected and unexpected repayment obligations arising over a shorter time frame at reasonable
cost and without incurring unacceptable losses.

The LCR is calculated by dividing a NBFC’s stock of HQLA by its total net cash outflows over a 30-day stress
period. It requires an NBFC to have an adequate stock of unencumbered high-quality liquid assets (HQLA) that can
be converted easily and immediately into cash to meet their liquidity needs for a 30 calendar day liquidity stress
scenario. The objective of the LCR is to promote the short-term resilience of the liquidity risk profile of NBFCs with
a view to improve the financial sector’s ability to absorb shocks arising from financial and economic stress, whatever
the source, thereby reducing the risk of spillover from the financial sector to the real economy.

LCR has been defined as: Stock of high quality liquid assets (HQLAs)
Total net cash outflow over the next 30 calendar days

In order to ensure an orderly transition towards LCR compliance, the LCR requirements have been made binding
on NBFCs by the RBI in a progressive manner starting from December 1, 2020 with minimum LCR to be maintained
at 50%, progressively reaching upto the required level of 100% by December 1, 2024. The present LCR required to
be maintained by GSFS, as per the proposed timeline is 50% as on 31st March 21.

Quantitative Disclosure: [ in Lakhs)
Q1 FY20-21 Q2 FY20-21 Q3 FY20-21 Q4 FY20-21

Total Total Total Total Total Total Total Total
Unweighted| weighted [Unweighted | weighted Unweighted | weighted [Unweighted| weighted
3 Value 4 Value 3 Value 4 Value 3 Value 4 Value 3 Value 4 Value
(average)| (average)| (average)| (average)| (average)| (average)| (average)| (average)

High Quality Liquid Assets

1 | Total High Quality Liquid Assets
(HQLA) 582300 517700 631567 566967 641400 576800 675267 610667

Cash Outflows

2 |Deposits
(for deposit taking companies)

Unsecured wholesale funding
Secured wholesale funding
Additional requirements, of which

Outflows related to derivative
exposures and other collateral
requirements

|| w

—
=
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Outflows related to loss of
funding on debt products

Credit and liquidity facilities

Other contractual funding
obligations

Other contingent funding
obligations

Other cash outflows (not falling
under any other above mentioned
heads and discloses repayment
of funds received from GoG
entities)

1113495

1280519

1016250

1168688

890821 1024444

980830

1127955

TOTAL CASH OUTFLOWS

1113495

1280519

1016250

1168688

890821 1024444

980830

1127955

Cash Inflows

Secured lending

Inflows from fully performing
exposures

Other cash inflows (majorly
includes loan repayments from
GoG entities and redemptions
from Investments in Liquid/Debt
Schemes of Mutual Funds)

2614193

1960645

2657858

1993394

2803318 2102489

2875017

2156263
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TOTAL CASH INFLOWS

2614193

1960645

2657858

1993394

2803318 2102489

2875017

2156263

Total
Adjusted
Value

Total
Adjusted
Value

Total
Adjusted
Value

Total
Adjusted
Value
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TOTAL HQLA

517700

566967

576800

610667
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TOTAL NET CASH
OUTFLOWS

320130

292172

256111

281989
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LIQUIDITY COVERAGE
RATIO (%)

162%

194%

225%

217%

3 Unweighted values has been calculated as outstanding balances maturing or callable within 30 days (for inflows and
ouftflows).
4 Weighted values have been calculated after the application of respective haircuts (for HQLA) and stress factors on
inflow and outflow

Company’s LCR for the Q4 of F.Y. 2020-21 comes to 217% and is above the minimum regulatory requirement of
50% as on March 31, 2021. Average HQLA held during the 4th quarter was ¥ 610667 Lakhs, of which Level 1
assets(i.e. GSDL securities) constituted 81% of total HQLA. Level 2 Assets (i.e Common Equity shares) constituted
19% of total HQLA. During the current quarter, HQLA (GSDL investments) have increased by around 7% whereas
level 2 investments have remained constant. The weighted projected net cash outflow position during Q4 20-21 has
gone up by ¥ 25878 Lakhs as compared to Q3 20-21 on account of increase in fund size.

As per the RBI guidelines, the company has formed an Asset-Liability Management Committee (ALCO). The Liquidity
Risk Management of the company is governed by the Asset-Liability Management (ALM) Policy approved by the
Board, which was devised keeping in view the unique business model of the company.

37 Schedule to the Balance Sheet as required in terms of Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company -
Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2016 dated September 1, 2016 updated as on February 17, 2020.
Liabilities side : (% in Lakhs)
Particulars Amount Outstanding Amount Overdue
31-Mar-21| 31-Mar-20( 31-Mar-21| 31-Mar-20
(1) Loans and advances availed by the non-banking
financial company inclusive of interest accrued
thereon but not paid:
(a) Debentures : Secured - - - -
Unsecured : (other than falling within the meaning
of public deposits) - - - -
(b) Deferred Credits - - - -
(c) Term Loans - - - -
(d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing 4215877.32| 3856755.83 6942.10 7227.80
(e) Public Deposits - - - -
(f) Commercial Paper - - - -
(g) Other Loans (specify nature)-Liquid deposit scheme 289246.52| 208637.99 - -
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Assets side :

(X in Lakhs)

Particulars

Amount Outstanding

31-Mar-21

31-Mar-20

(2)

(3)
(4)

Break-up of loans and Advances including bills receivables
[other than those included in (3) below ]

(a) Secured
(b) Unsecured

Break-up of Leased Assets and Stock on hire and other assets counting

towards AFC activities

Break-up of Investments :

Current Investments :

1

Quoted :

Shares :

(a) Equity

(b) Preference
Debentures and Bonds
Units of mutual funds
Government Securities
Others (please specify)

14.30
1203419.61

2.40
1189290.82

N,

2873811.07

A.

2559966.52

Unquoted :

Shares :

(a) Equity

(b) Preference
Debentures and Bonds
Units of mutual funds
Government Securities
Others (please specify)

Long Term investments :

1

Quoted :

Shares :

(a) Equity

(b) Preference
Debentures and Bonds
Units of mutual funds
Government Securities
Others (please specify)
Unquoted :

Shares :

(a) Equity

(b) Preference
Debentures and Bonds
Units of mutual funds
Government Securities
Others (please specify)

37961.43

211129.74

40000.00

581635.29

16779.00

17116.04

137865.50

40000.00

438451.97

14637.00
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(5) Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (2) above : (X in Lakhs)
Particulars Amount net of Provisions*
Secured Unsecured Total
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20| 31-Mar-21| 31-Mar-20| 31-Mar-21| 31-Mar-20
1 Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries
(under voluntary
liquidation) - - - - - -
(b) Companies in the
same group - - - - - -
(c) Other related parties - -1 1203416.34| 1189287.69| 1203416.34| 1189287.69
2 Other than related parties 14.30 2.40 3.27 3.13 17.57 5.53
Total

(6)

quoted and unquoted) :

Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities (both

(X in Lakhs)
Particulars Market Value / Break up Book Value
or fair value or NAV (Net of Provisions)
31-Mar-21| 31-Mar-20( 31-Mar-21| 31-Mar-20
1 Related Parties
(a)Subsidiaries (under voluntary liquidation) - - - -
(b)Companies in the same group - - - -
(c)Other related parties 16779.00 14637.00 16779.00 14637.00
2 Other than related parties 3744537.53 | 3193400.03 | 3744537.53 | 3193400.03
Total 3761316.53| 3208037.03 | 3761316.53 | 3208037.03

Market Value / Break up or fair value or NAV is taken as same as book value in case of unquoted shares in absence of
Market Value / Break up or fair value or NAV.

(7) Other Information ( in Lakhs)
Particulars 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
1 Gross Non - Performing Assets

(a) Subsidiaries (under voluntary liquidation) - -
(b) Other related parties - -
2 Net Non - Performing Assets
(a) Subsidiaries (under voluntary liquidation) - -
(b) Other related parties - -
3 Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt - -
38 Disclosure in compliace with RBI notification No.RBI/2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.N0.109/22.10.106/2019-
20 dated March 13, 2020. ( in Lakhs)
Less Provisions | Difference
Asset Gross .
e s e . . Allowances/ . required between
Asset Classification as per | Classificati | Carrying , Net Carrying
Provisions as as per IND AS 109
RBI Norms on as per | amt as per ired und Amt IRACP & IRACP
INDAS 109 | IND As |"eduirec uncer
IND AS 109 norms norms
1 2 3 4 5=3-4 6 7=4-6

Performing Assets
Standard Not Overdue | 1203432.83 -] 1203432.83 4813.73 (4813.73)
Performing Assets
Standard Stage 1

Stage 2 - - - - -
Sub total

Non Performing Assets (NPAs)

Substandard Stage 3 - - - - -
Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3 - - - - -
1 to 3 years Stage 3 - - - - -
More than 3 years Stage 3 - - - - -
Subtotal for doubtful - - - - -
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Loss

Stage 3 - - - - -

Subtotal for NPA - - - - -

Other items such as guarntees, |Stage 1 - - - - -
Loan commitments,etc which Stage 2 - - - - -
are in scope of IND AS 109 but |Stage 3 - - - - -
not covered under current
income recognition, Asset
classification, and provisioning
(IRACP) norms

Sub total - - - - -
Total Not Overdue| 1203432.83 - | 1203432.83 4813.73 (4813.73)
Stage 1 - - - - -
Stage 2 - - - - -
Stage 3 - - - - -
Total 1203432.83 -| 1203432.83 4813.73 (4813.73)
39 During the financial year 2020-21,one of the Independent Directors completed his second consecutive term on

40

41

42

March 22, 2020. Since GSFS is Government of Gujarat (GoG) Company, it is necessary to seek an opinion of the
GoG for appointment of Independent Director. In view of the same the Company in June, 2020 had proposed for
opinion of the GoG. The Government had approved appointment of Independent Director vide its letter dated July
15, 2020 and accordingly Company had appointed the Independent Director w.e.f.July 15, 2020.

During the year, dividend income, from strategic investments, has been shown as “Other Income” instead of “Revenue
from operations” and consequential changes have also been made in the previous year disclosure as well as cash
flow statements.

During the year, amount received against ICD / LDS pending clearance has been shown as “Other financial liabilities”
instead of “Deposits” and consequential change has also been made in the previous year disclosure.

With a view to provide more benefit to GoG entities as per the unique business model of the Company, for working
of interest in a leap year, GSFS has been considering 365 days on ICD & LDS and 366 days on loans for last more
than two decades. However,from the next leap year, the Company will consider 366 days for working of Interest on
ICD and LDS also as per usual accounting practice of having same basis of interest calculation.

Previous year’s figures have been re-grouped / re-classified wherever necessary to correspond with current year’s
classification / disclosure. Figures have been rounded off to rupees in lakhs.

As per our Report of even date
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